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NEEH
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Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit C, 33/F,

TML Tower,

No.3 Hoi Shing Road,

Tsuen Wan, N.T.
Hong Kong

Headquarters in China
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Nanshan District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
PRC

Company’s Website

www.leoch.com

Stock Code

842

Cayman Islands Principal Share

Registrar
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Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

and Transfer Office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Bank of China
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Financial Highlights

RERE

Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

ETEEREMAERAR ([RAF]) REWNEB AT
(SRR [l RASH NI ERHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t=-RA=+—-HLHFE

2015 2014 Change
—E—FE —E—F 25
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Revenue Wz 4,330,893 4,248,351 1.9%
Gross profit EH 769,709 716,660 7.4%
Profit before tax TR 4 134,556 111,864 20.3%
Profit attributable to BRRIER ARG 106,579 81,791 30.3%
owners of the parent gl
Basic earnings per share, G EA ZF| 0.08 0.06 33.3%
in RMB (AR®T)
Revenue Gross profit Profit before tax
ek E7 B A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFIT
5,000,000 800,000 769,709 150,000
4,330,893 71{5,6530 134,556
4’2439151 T 700,000
4,000,000 120,000 111,864
600,000 "
3,000,000 500,000 90,000
400,000
2,000,000 60,000
300,000
200,000
1,000,000 30,000
100,000
0, 0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB106.6 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.08 (2014: RMBO0.06),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,352,776,179 (2014: 1,344,534,167) in
issue during the year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommended the payment of the final dividend of HK2.60
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: HK2.25 cents). The Company had not declared and
paid any interim dividend or special dividend during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 25 May 2016 to Monday, 30 May 2016 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
24 May 2016.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 6 June 2016 to Wednesday, 8 June 2016 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for receiving the proposed
final dividend, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
3 June 2016.

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Words from the Chairman

On behalf of Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company’), | am pleased to present the Group’s report on
its annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Period”) for shareholders’ review.

To most global manufacturers especially those located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), 2015 was
undoubtedly a difficult year. The January 2016 issue of
Global Economic Prospects reported that global growth was
expected to fall short of expectation in 2015 by slowing to
2.4 percent as compared to 2.6 percent in 2014. Most of the
high income and developing countries’ real GDP growth rate
in 2015 was expected to be lower than previous year result.
The relative faster pace of depreciation of most countries’
currency against USD as compare to RMB created a fiercely
competitive business environment around the world. On the
other hand, the longer than expected strategic restructuring
among major telecommunication providers in the PRC
resulted in demand suppression on reserve power battery in
the first half of the Period. Being one of the major exporter of
lead-acid battery and manufacturer of reserve power battery
in PRC, it is unavoidable that our growth is interrupted in
2015. Nevertheless, the Group managed to have a slight
growth in turnover as a result of amongst other factors,
our devoted professional staff and quality products. Our
continuing effort in managing and controlling our cost and
enhancing our production efficiency had contributed to the
improvement of profit attributable to our shareholders.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
parent of RMB106.6 million and basic earnings per share of
RMBO0.08 for the year, compared with a profit attributable to
owners of the parent of RMB81.8 million and basic earnings
per share of RMBO0.06 for 2014. The Board is pleased
to propose a final dividend of HK2.60 cents per share,
representing an annual dividend payout ratio of approximately
27.6%.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

Market Opportunities and
Challenges

Battery industry researcher forecast that global demand for
primary and secondary batteries will rise in average at a pace
of 7.8 percent per year to USD 120 billion in 2019. PRC will
remain the largest national market for batteries while India is
also forecasted to post double-digit annual gains in battery
sales through 2019.

In PRC, increased investment in the construction of the 4G
network, rapid development of IT technologies, including
cloud technology, big data, e-commmerce and various types of
data centre and servers will continue to support the growth
of reserve power batteries. As we are one of the major
manufacturers in the reserve power battery, the Group is
confident that we can maintain our leading position in PRC
market and intends to devote sufficient resources to capture
the expecting growth.

The “start-stop batteries” system technology (which has
superior environmentally friendly design for reducing carbon
dioxide emissions and fuel saving), is believe to be one
of the applicable solutions to satisfy the China Passenger
Vehicle Fuel Consumption Standard IV which was launched
by the end of 2014 and will put into effect starting 2016.
The standard requires an average fuel consumption level of
5.0L/100km for new passenger vehicles in 2020, compared
with the current level at 6.9L/100km. It is reasonable to
foresee demand will be increase significantly in the next five
year. After years of investing in research and development of
the start-stop batteries and understanding customer needs,
the Group is well prepared on exploring and capitalizing on
this tremendous opportunity.

Although motive power batteries only accounted for less than
5% of the Group’s 2015 annual sales, the Group believes
that the growth of our motive power batteries in PRC will
be supported by the continued increase in unit demand of
electric tricycles, low speed electric vehicles, electric folk lift in
PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

The Group had and will continue providing sufficient resource
in research and development and production facilities on all
categories of products in order to secure growth in the future.

On the other hand, despite the fact that the number of
lead-acid battery enterprises in PRC had been significantly
reduced to less than 500 at the end of 2014, the benefit of
increment in market share could be neutralized by fierce price
competition amongst major players due to the ambition of
trying to outrun the others in expanding market shares. The
imposition of a consumption tax of 4% on lead-acid batteries
certainly could affect an enterprise’s profitability and export
performance. To cope with these challenges, the Group will
devote more resources to sales and marketing in PRC but
at the same time keeping a strict control over its production
costs and enhance production efficiency for the sake of
making the Group a competitive enterprise.

Oversea market accounted for 50.5% of the Group’s 2015
annual sales as compared to 54.0% in 2014. Although
sales in the United States of America increased by 4.2%,
all other territories suffer different degree of shortfall in sales
growth. In 2016, the Group is targeting to restore our growth
momentum by increasing oversea sales and marketing
capacity and expediting the establishment of new production
bases in foreign countries.

Business Development

The nationwide consolidation of the lead-acid battery industry
starting in 2011 will end shortly. In 2015, resources were
utilized to upgrade and modify production facilities so as to
satisfy existing environmental protection requirements. Most
of the Group’s production capacity has satisfied the current
environmental protection standard. The Group will devote
sufficient resources to further upgrade our facilities for a
higher productivity and a foreseeable stringent environmental
protection standard in the future.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

Due to the sluggish in demand during the Period, although
the production capacity of the Group was released after
environment modification, average monthly production
output remained largely the same for the first half in 2015
as compared with the same period in 2014. After the end
of strategic restructuring among major telecommunication
providers in PRC, the demand on reserve power battery
surged in the second half of the period which provided the
Group with the opportunity to better utilize its production
capacity. Although production output increased substantially,
the Group’s production capacity is well prepared for this
predicted circumstance and possible growth in the near
future in PRC.

To cope with the Group’s global expansion strategy in major
emerging markets, a newly established joint venture factory
in India will commence trial production in April 2016. The
establishment of this factory will enhance our competitive
power in India market and overcome trade barrier. The Group
plans to increase its production volume in other oversea
factories in 2016 and will continue to identify opportunities of
establishing new production bases in foreign countries.

The Group will constantly review our strategy and
development and perform timely adjustment when required.

Prospects

Lead acid batteries remain a robust and economical power
source for bulk use, accounted more than 30% of total global
battery trading amount, and the demand is still growing.
The management is fully confident in implementing the
Group’s production and marketing strategies and intends
to seize every growth opportunity in PRC and around the
world. To cater for customer needs, the Group is committed
to high product and service quality with reasonable price.
To consolidated its competitive advantages, the Group will
continue enhancing its production and sales capacities
and provide sufficient effort and resources on technological
research and development. Thus, it aims to build itself into
the leading enterprise of the lead-acid battery industry in the
world and create value for shareholders and the society.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

Acknowledgement

The sustainable development and growth of the Group is
attributable to its loyal and hardworking employees who have
devoted themselves to our corporate development. | hereby,
on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to the contributions of all
the Group’s employees and to the long-term support and
trust by shareholders and business partners. The Group is
full of confident that it can make continuous contributions to
shareholders and the society.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmE DM

Business Review

The Group is a vertically integrated enterprise primarily
engaged in the development, sale and manufacture of lead-
acid batteries. The Group sells over 2,000 models of lead-
acid battery products, ranging in capacity from 0.251 Ah to
4,055 Ah. Among the PRC battery manufacturers, the Group
offers one of the broadest lines of lead-acid battery products.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB4,330.9 million,
representing an increase of 1.9% from RMB4,248.4 million in
2014. Lead-acid batteries are generally classified into three
major market categories, namely reserve power batteries,
SLI batteries and motive power batteries. Details of business
operations of the Group in these three categories are as
follows:

Reserve power batteries

Reserve power batteries are the major revenue contributor
of the Group. The Group’s sales of reserve power
batteries during the Period amounted to RMB3,160.4
million, representing an increase of 2.3% from 2014.
Reserve power battery products are further classified
into four major application markets, namely uninterrupted
power supply system (“UPS”), telecommunications,
other consumer products and renewable energy. Sales
of UPS, other consumer products and renewable energy
categories increased as compared to a slight decrease in
telecommunications category for the Period. The increase
in sales of UPS, other consumer products and renewable
energy categories was primarily due to an increase in the
customer base in China and overseas and the contribution
from new oversea markets, such as Australia. The Group’s
sales in the telecommunication category decreased
slightly, mainly due to the weak market demand of
telecommunication batteries in the middle of 2015 as a result
of strategic restructuring among major telecommunication
providers in the PRC despite strong market demand
afterwards.
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Management Discussion and Analysis BIEEz Kk 24

SLI batteries

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting up automobiles
and motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during
the Period amounted to RMB851.7 million, representing
an increase of 2.0% from 2014. The increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in the customer base of
automobiles and motorcycles batteries.

Motive power batteries

Motive power batteries are mainly used to provide power for
electric vehicles such as forklifts, golf carts, electric bicycles
and other portable devices. During the Period, the Group
recorded sales revenue of RMB136.8 million, representing
an increase of 0.8% from 2014. The slight increase in sales
was a result of the stabilization of the electric vehicle battery
industry during the Period after the fierce competition in
2014,

Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group’s regional
sales centres are located in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Nanjing, the United States, the European Union, Hong Kong,
Singapore, India, Sri Lanka, Malaysia and Australia, together
with 39 domestic sales centres across the PRC. As at the
date of this annual report, the Group has over 500 dedicated
sales and after-sales employees. The Group will continue
expanding its sales teams and marketing network to support
the sales, distribution, and after-sales services for the reserve
power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries of
the Group.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIEE

Research and development of new products

The Group is a leader in R&D and application of lead-
acid battery technologies in China. The Group’s battery
research and development team consists of more than 400
researchers and technicians. To support its R&D efforts,
the Group works closely with international and domestic
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. As at the date of this Announcement, the
Group holds 896 patents and there are 70 proprietary
technologies in the process of patent applications.

The Group has grasped and applied most of the lead-acid
battery technologies in the world, including technologies
used in the first generation open-type fluid infusion battery,
the second generation Absorbent Glass Mat battery and
new energy battery, the third generation pure lead battery,
and the fourth generation Stop-Start battery. The Group is
one of a handful of enterprises in the world possessing the
third and the fourth generations of technologies. The Group’s
strong R&D capabilities enable it to produce a broad range
of battery products deploying most of the key lead-acid
battery technologies. As at the date of this annual report,
the Group has developed more than 2,000 different types of
battery products employing various application technologies,
making the Group one of the battery enterprises with the
broadest range of lead- acid batteries. During the Period, the
Group continued to provide sufficient resource in R&D on all
categories of product in order to secure growth in the future.
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Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated seven well-built
production bases, including four wholly-owned production
bases in the PRC, a wholly-owned production base in Sri
Lanka, and two joint venture production bases in Malaysia,
with a total site area of approximately 920,000 sg.m. In
the second half of the Period, the Group commenced the
construction of a joint venture production base in India.
Infrastructure works was completed and equipments were
installed in early 2016. Trial production will commence in April
of 2016. As at the end of 2015, the Group had production
capacity of 18.2 million KVAh (31 December 2014: 18.2
million KVAh). To cope with potential business expansion,
the Group is planning to further expand its production and
manufacturing capacities in the PRC and oversea.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major sales cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market, an
information service provider of the non-ferrous metal market,
the monthly average lead prices was declined modestly
by approximately 4% in January 2015 as compared with
December 2014 which was RMB12,536 and RMB13,032
respectively. Average lead price remained stable for the next
two months. Since April 2015, average lead price rebounded
and except for November 2015, each month’s average lead
price was approximately 1% to 5% higher when comparing
with yearly average lead price of RMB13,097, which
indicated that lead price was slowly rebounding to a higher
level. To cope with potential risks of fluctuations in lead price,
the Group adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw
materials price fluctuations to its customers to hedge against
relevant risks. The Group’s centralized procurement of raw
materials enables it to trim down costs of raw materials
through favourable negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.
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Future Prospects

Batteries, one of the necessities in modern society, are
mainly used in UPS at data centres of computer networks,
automobiles, motorcycles, telecommunication base
stations, trains, subway, solar and wind power stations,
substations, electric vehicles, elevators, backup lights and
medical equipment. These equipment industries have been
dominated in Europe and U.S.A., and accessory batteries
have also been manufactured overseas. However, the
surging application of these equipment amid the urbanization
paces in the PRC is pushing forward a shift for such
equipment to be manufactured domestically. Hence, the
Group believes that the lead-acid battery market will enjoy
continuous growth as driven by domestic industry upgrading
and the ongoing shift of the high-end industries from
overseas.

The Group anticipates that lead-acid batteries will sustain the
growth momentum in three categories, namely reserve power
batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries. To grasp
these market opportunities, the Group has formulated the
following strategic plans for the three categories of lead-acid
batteries:

Reserve power batteries

Equipment manufacturers and operators are the Group’s
major customers. Reserve power battery products have four
major application areas, namely UPS, telecommunications,
other consumer products and renewable energy. The Group
also believes that in the long run, reserve power batteries
will sustain growth in these four major application markets.
The Group has exerted all its efforts to expand its market
share to secure its leading position in the domestic market of
reserve power batteries. To deal with the intense competition
and trade barrier in oversea market, the Group will continue
seeking high quality joint venture partner to further expand
overseas production base and business.
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SLI batteries

China has been ranked first in vehicle production and sales
in the world since 2010, with over 20 million vehicles, which
is higher than over 10 million in the United States and over
10 million in the European Union. A consensus has therefore
been formed in the market that the momentum of vehicle
production and sales in China will continue from 2016 to
2022, further multiplying the demand for SLI batteries. The
Group has strengthened its investment in SLI batteries,
aiming to become one of the leading suppliers of SLI
batteries for automobiles in China. The new joint venture
production base in India will equip the Group with production
capacity for SLI batteries to meet demand in the India
market.

Motive power batteries

The demand for motive power batteries has been propelled
by the extensive promotion and application of the batteries in
electric transportations such as electric bicycles, low-speed
battery vehicles and forklifts. The Group will maintain its
competitiveness in the sector of low-speed electric vehicles
and forklifts which will withess more extensive application as
driven by industrial automation.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB4,330.9 million, representing an increase of
1.9% compared to the year ended 31 December 2014. The
profit for the year amounted to RMB 106.3 million for the year
ended 2015 as compared to RMB 81.8 million for the year
ended 2014, of which the profit attributable to the owners of
the parent amounted to RMB106.6 milion as compared to
RMB81.8 million for the corresponding period in 2014. Basic
profit per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
RMBO0.08.
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 1.9% from RMB4,248.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB4,330.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The revenue of reserve power batteries increased by
2.3% from RMB3,088.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB3,160.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015, which was principally due to
an increase in the customer base in China and overseas
and the contribution from new oversea markets, such as
Australia, and strong market demand of telecommunication
batteries near the end of 2015 after strategic restructuring
among major telecommunication providers in the PRC. The
revenue of SLI batteries increased by 2.0% from RMB835.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB851.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was
primarily attributable to an increase in the customer base

Wy ==
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of automobiles and motorcycles batteries. The revenue of HIARE1368EHE L EEHMNEB - —NFH
motive power batteries increased by 0.8% from RMB135.7 RIS FEEHIANESEEMIT %ﬁﬁf@k FrELe LA
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB136.8 Z%$x@ﬁ<\@i_9§ AFR-ZE—NF+=A
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was =+—H IFFERE MBI E DR URSAA
a result of the stabilization of the electric vehicle battery
industry during the Period after the fierce competition in
2014. Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 by category of batteries are set
out below:
2015 2014
—E-h% —E-mF
Percentage
increase/
Revenue Share (decrease) Revenue Share
BE/
Product category EmER U 3 154 (TR) = e kit
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Reserve power batteries EREN 3,160,400 73.0% 2.3% 3,088,905 72.7%
SLI batteries REE 851,704 19.6% 2.0% 835,356 19.7%
Motive power batteries EIEN 136,774 3.2% 0.8% 135,675 3.2%
Other Hit 182,015 4.2% (3.4%) 188,415 4.4%
Total CE 4,330,893 100% 1.9% 4,248,351 100%
BLEBRBMARAR | —2—AFFH
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Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, the United States of America, the European
Union and other Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded
different degree of growth in its sales in the PRC and the
United States while sales in the European Union, other Asian
Countries/areas and other secondary market decreased.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by 9.8%
from RMB1,954.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB2,145.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, representing 49.5% of the Group’s total
revenue (for the year ended 31 December 2014: 46.0%).
The increase was mainly due to increased customer base as
a result of powerful marketing and strong market demand
of telecommunication batteries near the end of 2015 after
strategic restructuring among major telecommunication
providers in the PRC.

The Group’s sales revenue in the United States of America
and European Union increased by 4.2% and decreased by
11.9% from RMB668.6 million and RMB763.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB696.7 million and
RMB672.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
respectively, which was mainly due to the Group diverting
its effort from European market to American market as a
result of depreciation of currencies in European Union and
economic recovery in the United States. The Group's sales
revenue in other Asian countries/areas decreased by 4.3%
from RMB608.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB582.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. The decrease was principally due to weak economy
in the other Asian countries and keen competition in the
region. The Group’s sales revenue from battery products in
other countries decreased by 7.8% from RMB253.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB233.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was mainly
due to lower sales from Africa and South American, resulting
in fierce competition from traditional European battery
manufacturers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIEE

The following revenue information is based on the location of
the customers for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014:

NI RBE_ZT—RFLR-TNMF+-_A=1+—
HIEFEREFEiE S HKEER

2015 2014
—B-1%E it Sl
Percentage
increase/
Revenue Share (decrease) Revenue Share
BE/
D& 194 (TRe) %= e 174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
PRC i 2,145,096 49.5% 98% 1,954,397 46.0%
United States of America xE 696,675 16.1% 4.2% 668,594 15.7%
European Union Be 672,594 15.5% (11.9%) 763,170 18.0%
Other Asian countries/areas HioNER /& 582,827 13.5% (4.3%) 608,936 14.3%
Other countries HEX 233,501 5.4% (7.8%) 253,254 6.0%
Total A 4,330,893 100% 1.9% 4,248,351 100%
Cost of Sales SHE R

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 0.8% from
RMB3,531.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
to RMB3,561.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. The slight increase was mainly due to the better
control on the manufacturing overhead during the Period
resulting in corresponding increase in cost of sales less than
sales growth.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 7.4% from RMB716.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB769.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The overall
gross profit margin increased from 16.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to 17.8% for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 6.6% from RMB75.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB70.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly due to
the absence of gains on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by 7.0%
from RMB202.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 to RMB216.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, primarily due to the increased salaries of sale
personnel and cost of logistic service during the Period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased slightly
by 1.5% from RMB220.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB216.8 milion for the year ended
31 December 2015, mainly due to better control on
administrative spending.

R&D Expenses

The development expenditure of the Group decreased
by 45.0% from RMB154.4 milion for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB84.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The decrease in expenditure was
mainly due to the fact that most of expenditure relating to
development of new products carried out in 2014 were
capitalized in 2015.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by 50.9% from
RMB50.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
to RMB75.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, which was mainly due to recognition of the loss on
inventories and properties of RMB31.0 million as a result of
the fire incident at one of the warehouses at Huaibei city,
Anhui, the PRC on 24 March 2015.

Fair value Gain/(Loss) on Financial
Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss, net

Included in other expenses, the Group recognized fair value
loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss of RMB37.4 million (for the year ended 31 December
2014: RMB44.9 million), which comprised fair value gain on
warrants issued for RMB5.4 million (fair value loss for the year
ended 31 December 2014: RMB12.4 million), fair value loss
on foreign exchange forward contracts for RMB31.4 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2014: RMB32.5 million)
and fair value loss on equity investments for RMB11.4 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2014: Nil), for the Period.

(i) Warrants

On 7 May 2014, the Company issued 46,000,000
warrants to certain independent third parties to
subscribe for the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each. The subscription rights attaching to 50% of these
warrants may be exercised at any time during a period
of 12 months commencing from 8 May 2014 with an
exercise price of HK$1.2 per share. The subscription
rights attaching to the remaining 50% of these warrants
may be exercised at any time during a period of
18 months commencing from 8 May 2014 with an
exercise price of HK$1.6 per share. These warrants are
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at fair
value through profit or loss. At 31 December 2014, The
Company had 33,000,000 warrants outstanding with a
total fair value of RMB5.4 million.
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(i)

(i)

In the current year, the subscription rights attaching to
23,000,000 warrants and 10,000,000 warrants expired
on 6 November 2015 and 6 May 2015, respectively.
Upon the expiration of these warrants, a fair value gain
of RMB5.4 million was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the current year.

Forward currency contracts

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures.
These forward currency contracts are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net loss, including
realised and unrealised, on changes in the fair value of
the forward currency contracts amounting to RMB31.4
million (for the year ended 31 December 2014:
RMB32.5 million) was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss during the year. The maturity dates of the
derivative financial instruments are within one year.

Equity investments

During the Period, the Group had listed equity
investments in Hong Kong and the PRC. The fair values
of the listed securities were determined by reference to
their quoted market bid prices available on the relevant
exchanges at the end of the period. Due to the sluggish
share markets both in Hong Kong and the PRC, loss
from the change in fair value of RMB11.4 milion was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
current year.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 3.5% from
RMB108.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB104.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
mainly due to the decreased interest expenses arising from
discounted bills during the Period.
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Profit before Tax BADREF

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded MR EERZE AEBREE-_ZT—AF+=A
profit before tax of RMB134.6 milion for the year ended 31  =+—H - FEEERFT /ﬂIJ}\E%M 6EETT
December 2015 as compared to RMB111.9 milion for the MEHZE-ZT—WNFE+_-_A=+—HILFEBAA

year ended 31 December 2014. RE111.98&87Te
Income Tax Expense Fri8HiB X
Income tax expense decreased by 6.0% from RMB30.1 SHRYHEBEE S —NF+_A=1T—H1tF

million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB28.3 EE’J/\E%SOJE%% 60N EEHE—_T—H
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, mainly dueto  F+—A=+—HIEFENARK283HETL  T)

more tax concession obtained during the Period. FERNHANERE L HIBR R
Profit for the Year REEEF
As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded HMRUEEZR AEBREBEE-_T—AF+=A

consolidated net profit of RMB106.3 milion (for the year =+—BItFE ﬁ?%#%é%ﬁﬂ%/&ﬁ%msﬁ%
ended 31 December 2014: RMB81.8 million) for the year 7T (HE-ZT—MNF+-F=+— Eiir AR

ended 31 December 2015, of which the Group recorded #818F&E7T) EFRBAEESESHARES
profit attributable to the owners of the parent of RMB106.6 AL HFAARKE1066E 8T (@;Ec_ —HF

million (for the year ended 31 December 2014: RMB81.8 +_-A=+—HIFFE: ARKSISEHET) °
million) for the same period.

Net Current Assets RBEERE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets W -Z—AFE+-F=+—H0 AEBHLRBEE
of RMB279.4 milion (31 December 2014: RMB228.3 million). HEARE27948 8T (—E—NF+-_A=+—
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories, H: ARKE2283E&ET) AEBRHEETER
trade and bills receivables, cash and bank balances, EFE -ZESEKFBREKRSEE Re MIEITHE
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s % FBFUE 5l & R EAERFIE - AEERENE
current liabilites mainly consist of trade and bills payables, EI%@%%%FEH?XE&JEH%TE*EMJ@N?X
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank B JEFHFUIE 5T ERITIEE -

borrowings.
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Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components of
the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group had inventories of RMB889.0 million (31 December
2014: RMB796.1 milion). The increase in inventories was
primarily due to forecast of strong market demand of
telecommunication batteries in the PRC in the early period of
2016.

Trade and Other Receivables

@)

©)

Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily related
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As at
31 December 2015, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB1,548.9 million (31 December 2014
RMB1,358.3 million). The increase in trade and bills
receivables was primarily because of the strong market
demand of telecommunication batteries near the end
of the Period after strategic restructuring among major
telecommunication providers in the PRC.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

The Group’s prepayments and deposits mostly related
to the purchase of raw materials. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of RMB119.1 million (31 December
2014: RMB66.4 million). The increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as compared to
2014 was primarily because the Group increased its
prepayments for raw materials in order to meet the
expected strong market demand of telecommunication
batteries in the PRC in the early period of 2016.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB1,220.1
million (31 December 2014: RMB1,216.4 million). The slight
increase in trade and bills payables was mainly because of
the Group’s increased procurement for increased turnover.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of payments for its expenditures related to construction
and renovation of its production facilities, payments in
connection with transportation charges, advance payments
from customers for shipments and accruals for payroll and
benefits for its employees. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group had other payables and accruals of RMB327.3 million
(81 December 2014: RMB360.2 million), the decrease was
mainly due to the decreased payables for purchase of items
of property, plant and equipment.

Capital Expenditures

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
invested RMB169.0 million (31 December 2014: RMB94.9
million) in property, plant and equipment for its new
production facilities.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB279.4 million (31 December 2014:
RMB228.3 million), among which cash and bank deposits
amounted to RMB788.0 million (31 December 2014:
RMB761.4 million). As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had bank borrowings of RMB1,555.9 million (31 December
2014: RMB1,201.7 million), all of which are interest-bearing.
Except for borrowings of RMB84.8 million (31 December
2014: RMB62.2 million) which has a maturity over one year,
all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable within one
year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated in RMB, US
dollars, HK dollars and Singapore dollars, and the effective
interest rates of which as of 31 December 2015 were 1.50%
to 7.53% (31 December 2014: 1.95% to 7.80%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and trade
and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 27.1% (31 December 2014: 22.8%), which
was calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as
at the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014 Nil).
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of the
PRC, their principal activities were transacted in U.S.
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to PRC regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion. The value of the RMB
against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate
and is affected by, among other things, change in PRC’s
political and economic conditions. The Group’s product
sales adopted a price mechanism by which the currency
fluctuation is basically transferred to the customers, but
the Group’s foreign currency trade receivables may still be
exposed to risk in the credit period. The Group commenced
using forward currency contracts since the year 2012 to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures arising from sales
denominated in U.S. dollar. The forward currency contracts
must be in the same currency as the hedged item, i.e. U.S.
dollar.

Loss on Inventories and Properties as a
result of Fire Incident

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
25 March 2015, one of the warehouses of the Group’s
production factory in Huaibei city, Anhui, the PRC, caught fire
on 24 March 2015, which resulted in losses on inventories
and property, plant and equipment of RMB70.2 million and
RMB8.3 million, respectively. After taking into account of
the reimbursement received/receivable from the insurance
companies, a net loss of RMB31.0 million was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the current
year.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies by the Group during
the Period.

Employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 11,213 employees.
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration),
which comprised wages and salaries, performance-
related bonuses, equity-settled share option expenses and
retirement benefit scheme contributions, totaled RMB548.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (for the year
ended 31 December 2014: RMB543.1 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors
Executive Directors

DONG Li (E2), aged 49, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee and
founder of the Company. Mr. Dong has been appointed
as executive director since 27 April 2010, the date of the
incorporation of our Company. Mr. Dong is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also one of the authorised
representatives of the Company and serving as director for
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Dong also serves as
director for various private wholly owned companies which
include investment holding and manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. Dong graduated from Northwest Textile University
of Science and Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an
Polytechnic University, in 1988 with a Bachelor's degree
in Engineering and Xi’an International Studies College, the
predecessor of Xi'an International Studies University, in 1990
with a Bachelor of Arts degree. Mr. Dong obtained an EMBA
degree from National University of Singapore in 2015.

Contributing to his business experience and social
participation, he received various recognitions and honours
in the past including Outstanding China Nongovernmental
Entrepreneur (R F R & BB K), Rising Star
Entrepreneur of Shenzhen CEIIBIZEFTEZ ), Honorary
Citizen (£ R ) of Zhaoging City in China and Texas in
the United States.
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Mr. Dong also holds social positions including Council
Member of China Overseas Exchange Association ( 7 )&
N IE ) , overseas member of All-China Federation of
Returned Overseas Chinese (P E2RFEHEBFH AT ),
Honorary Chairman of Shenzhen Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese (ARYIT SFEZEEH A€ ) | Vice Chairman
of Anhui Province Overseas Exchange Association ( Z#1&
BN E ), Vice Chairman of Guangdong High-Tech
Industry Chamber (ZR = EHEEZEEE ) , Council Member
of Harmony Club of Shenzhen CEIYI TR LB 4 5R) |
Honorary Chairman of the Chinese CEO Organization (&
TR 1% &) and Honorary Chairman of Chinese American
Federation (EBIZE At E ) .

Mr. Dong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

ZHAO Huan (8 #) , aged 39, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Ms. Zhao has been
appointed as executive director since 11 June 2010.

Ms. Zhao graduated from Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College specializing in Finance in 1996
and from the University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004
with a Master of Arts degree in International Business.

Ms. Zhao is experienced in international sales and
management. Ms. Zhao first joined the Group in 2004 as
a foreign trade officer. She was subsequently promoted to
foreign trade manager, deputy general manager of foreign
trade department, vice president and finally to her current
position, in which her responsibilities focus more on the
overall management and strategic development of the
Group.

Ms. Zhao personally held 1,500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.
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Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, aged 75, is an executive
director of the Company and president of Leoch Battery
Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Mr.
Noznesky has been appointed as executive director since 11
June 2010.

Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier University in 1962 with
a Bachelor’'s degree in Sciences and obtained a Master of
Arts degree in Russian History from Georgetown University
in 1965. He joined the Group in 2007 as president of Leoch
Battery Corp. in charge of the sale and distribution of our
products in the U.S. market.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Noznesky had been in the
management of other companies in the battery industry
including Energy Battery Group, Accumuladores Mexicanas,
GNB Inc. and General Battery Corp. He has over 40 years of
experience in sales of battery in the U.S. market.

Mr. Noznesky personally held 1,500,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

LAU Chi Kit (215 #t), aged 71, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. Lau retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the Chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently the Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he is also
an Independent Nonexecutive Director of Highlight China loT
International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory Group
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1682), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) and Royale
Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198). He is also
an Executive Director of Chinlink International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 997). The shares of Highlight China IoT
International Limited (formerly known as Ford Glory Group
Holdings Limited), Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited,
Royale Furniture Holdings Limited and Chinlink International
Holdings Limited are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Lau personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

CAO Yixiong Alan (B 75 ) , aged 47, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. Cao personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

LIU Yangsheng (2If54) , aged 69, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, a member of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing College of
Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications, from 1965 to
1970.
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Mr. Liu worked at Beijing College of Posts and
Telecommunications for more than 10 years until 1984. Mr.
Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications,
the predecessor of Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, in 1984, and served as the Director of the
cadre members department and Director of the human
resources department. Mr. Liu retired from the Ministry of
Information Industry, the predecessor of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, in 2007. Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology is responsible for the overall
management such as promulgation of industry policies
and strategies, implementation of laws and regulations,
and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the Chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (3R
MEBEHEEBGR A A)) and a Supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99).

Mr. Liu personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

Dr. GONG Fangxiong (B85 %), aged 52, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director, a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company since 1 July
2015.

Dr. GONG has obtained a Ph.D. in Financial Economics from
Wharton at the University of Pennsylvania, a M.S. in Physics
from Temple University and two other degrees from Peking
University (M.A. in Operation Research and Economics and
B.S. in Physics).
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Recently retired, Dr. Gong had been the Chairman of
JPMorgan China Investment Banking and the Managing
Director of JPMorgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Ltd from
September 2009 to April 2015. During that time, Dr. Gong
also held the title of Chairman of JPM China Diversified
Industry Clients. Prior to that period of time, Dr. Gong was
Head of JPMorgan China Research/Strategy and Chief
Economist, leading JPMorgan’s China research team
covering equity research, market strategy, macro and FX/
rates. Dr. Gong also co-headed JPMorgan EM Asia market
research and strategy and had been consecutively and
repeatedly rated the No.1 China analyst and strategist by
Institutional Investor and Asia Money. Dr. Gong was the
Chief Strategist and Co-Head of global currency and rates
research at Bank of America from August 1997 to May 2004
and an economist at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York
from 1995 to July 1997, where his duties included research
and policy submission to Federal Open Market Committee of
the United States of America.

Dr. Gong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2015.

Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 52, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 28 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is @ member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

ESEWRE

The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group's financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1)  Substantially all of our revenue is derived from batteries
using lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery
market does not grow at the rate we expect or at
all, or if lead-acid technology is replaced by another
technology, our business, profitability and future
prospects may be materially and adversely affected;

2)  Any global economic downturn, or changes in the
economic, political and social conditions in PRC may
have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;
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3) If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

4)  We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results of
operations could be adversely affected if we lose these
customers;

5)  We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

6) Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on major
suppliers is set out on page 57 under the heading
“Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report of
Directors.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 81 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 82 of this annual report.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.60 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: HK2.25 cents) to be payable to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 8 June 2016. Subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the said final
dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders on or
about 4 July 2016.

Environmental Policies and
Performance

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipments in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqing and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide on-
time reading is connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.
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During the Period, the Group provided sufficient resource to
upgrade and enhance the level of environmental protection.
Most of our factories have passed the environment protection
inspection in 2015 with one factory entered the list of
approval of industry access inspection released by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied
with the relevant laws, rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group during the Period.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85 of this annual
report and in note 43 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise
the share premium account and shareholder’s contribution
less accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2015, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,514.4 million
including RMB29.5 million for the proposed final dividend.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorate
basis to existing shareholders.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 255 to 256 of this
annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Ms. ZHAO Huan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan

Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Dr. GONG Fangxiong (appointed on 1 July 2015)
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. LIU
Yangsheng and Mr. DONG Li will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Further, Dr. GONG Fangxiong, who was appointed by the
Board in 1 July 2015, shall also be subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from 17
November 2013, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover
for the Directors in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors and officers. The Board reviews the extent of the
insurance cover every year.

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 29
to 35.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors, senior
management members and employees of the Group was
based on qualifications, years of experiences and the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed
regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Transaction,
Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that
section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Notes:

Save

Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,001,800,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Jingle Bells Group Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited.
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of
a discretionary trust established by Mr. DONG Li and the
beneficiaries of such trust are family members of Mr. DONG Li.

Ms. ZHAO Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY has been granted options for
1,600,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LIU Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”

below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,353,319,666 shares, being the number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2015.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none

of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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Share Option

A.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2015 was 23,272,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.7% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2015 was 21,720,000 shares (representing
approximately 1.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 32 to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

TERROBRODEZR AR

RoF—RET-A=+—B RERESRESE
PIFceHATF BB RMES  THIAL (TR
EANTEEREBITRAR) BEAATRA%
LA RO AR

Approximate

Number and class percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest of securities* shareholding®
BRERER ERtE RHEHEREAN HOBERESHO
Master Alliance Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%
Master Alliance Investment Limited BEnBEAA 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%
Jingle Bells Group Limited ™ Interest of Controlled Corporation 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%
Jingle Bells Group Limited (" S LEER 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited @ Interest under a Trust 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited @ {5 7E38 T2 1,001,800,000(L) 74.03%

*

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

Notes:

Q)

Jingle Bells Group Limited is deemed to be interested in
1,001,800,000 shares which are held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited.

DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be
interested in 1,001,800,000 shares held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by DB International
Trust (Singapore) Limited. DB International Trust (Singapore)
Limited is also the trustee of a discretionary trust established
by Mr. DONG Li and the beneficiaries of such trust are family
members of Mr. DONG Li.

This is based on 1,353,319,666 shares, being the number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2015.
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As disclosed above, at 31 December 2015, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Issue of equity securities under
general mandate

On 23 April 2014, the Company entered into the warrant
placing agreement with UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited
as the placing agent in connection with the placing of: (j)
23,000,000 warrants (or HK$27,600,000 warrants) conferring
rights to subscribe for 23,000,000 shares at the exercise
price of HK$1.2 per share (subject to adjustment) at any
time during a period of 12 months commencing from the
date of issue at a placing price of HK$0.015 per warrant;
and (i) 23,000,000 warrants (or HK$36,800,000 warrants)
conferring rights to subscribe for 23,000,000 shares at the
exercise price of HK$1.6 per share (subject to adjustment)
at any time during a period of 18 months commencing from
the date of issue at a placing price of HK$0.01 per warrant.
The warrants were placed and issued to: () Asian Equity
Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited; (ii)
Asian Opportunities Absolute Return Fund Limited; (i) Asian
Technology Absolute Return Fund; and (iv) Pacific Alliance
Asia Opportunity Fund LP on 7 May 2014.

The warrant exercise prices of HK$1.2 and HK$1.6 per share
represent a premium of approximately 9.1% and 45.5%
respectively over the closing price of HK$1.1 per share
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 April 2014, being the
date of the warrant placing agreement.

At 31 December 2014, the Company had 33,000,000
warrants outstanding. During the period, no subscription
right is exercised and the subscription rights attaching to
23,000,000 warrants and 10,000,000 warrants expired on 6
November 2015 and 6 May 2015, respectively.
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Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions.
The continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions conducted by the Group in 2015, which was
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out
as follows:

A.

Continuing connected transaction which
is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements

Leases with Mr. DONG Li and his Associates

A master leasing agreement dated 8 November 2012
(the “2012 Master Leasing Agreement’) has been
entered into between the Company and Mr. DONG Li
(our controlling shareholder and executive Director).
Pursuant to the 2012 Master Leasing Agreement,
members of the Group will lease from Mr. DONG
Li and/or his associates properties for the use by
members of the Group. Individual tenancy agreement
will be entered into between members of the Group and
Mr. DONG Li and/or his associates with respect to the
leasing arrangement of individual leased property. The
2012 Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of three
years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.
Upon expiry of the term, the 2012 Master Leasing
Agreement will, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the 2012 Master Leasing Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2015
have been set at RMB3.5 million, RMB3.5 million and
RMBS3.5 million. For the year ended 31 December 2015
the aggregate rent paid by the Group under the 2012
Master Leasing Agreement was approximately RMB2.9
million.
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B. Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

0

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
with Mr. DONG Li dated 1 August 2010 (the
“Original Master Sales Agreement”) which
sets out the terms and conditions upon which
members of the Group will sell to Mr. DONG Li’s
associates, and Mr. DONG Li's associates wiill
purchase from members of the Group, products
including lead-acid batteries, mainly start lighting
and ignition batteries, reserve power batteries
and motive power batteries, and related parts.
The products to be sold and purchased under
the Original Master Sales Agreement shall be at
the prevailing market price, namely, the price at
which the same type of products is sold by us to
independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in the
PRC. The Original Master Sales Agreement is for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2010. Upon expiry of the term, the Original Master
Sales Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for a further
period of three years by mutual agreement.
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The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
Original Master Sales Agreement and entered
into a new master agreement dated 25 October
2012 (the “2012 Master Sales Agreement”).
The 2012 Master Sales Agreement is for a
term of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015. Upon expiry of the term, the
2012 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement.
The annual caps for the transactions under the
2012 Master Sales Agreement for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2015 have
been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million
and RMB60.0 million. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the aggregate amount received
by the Group under the Master Sales Agreement
was approximately RMB49.4 million.

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
2012 Master Sales Agreement and entered into a
new master agreement dated 13 October 2015
(the “2015 Master Sales Agreement’). The
2015 Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2016
and ending on 31 December 2018. Upon expiry
of the term, the 2015 Master Sales Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for
the transactions under the 2015 Master Sales
Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2018 have been set at RMB100.0
million, RMB150.0 million and RMB200.0 million.
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Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
dated 1 August 2010 with Mr. DONG Li (the
“Original Master Purchase Agreement’)
which sets out the terms and conditions upon
which members of the Group will purchase
from Mr. DONG Li's associates, and Mr. DONG
Li’'s associates will sell to members of the
Group, products including battery cases, parts,
models, chargers and electronic products
(for the manufacturing of the Group’s battery
products or sale as accessories of the Group'’s
battery products) and electric scooters (for use
by members of the Group). The products to be
sold and purchased under the Original Master
Purchase Agreement shall be at the prevailing
market price, namely, the price at which the
same type of products is sold to the Group by
independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in the
PRC. The Original Master Purchase Agreement
is for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2010. Upon expiry of the term, the
Original Master Purchase Agreement will, subject
to the requirements of the Listing Rules, be
renewed for further period of three years by
mutual agreement.
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The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed
the Original Master Purchase Agreement
and entered into a new master agreement
dated 25 October 2012 (the “2012 Master
Purchase Agreement”). The 2012 Master
Purchase Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2013 and ended on
31 December 2015. Upon expiry of the term, the
2012 Master Purchase Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed
for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the 2012 Master Purchase Agreement for
each of the three year ended 31 December 2015
have been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0
million and RMB60.0 million. For the year ended
31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
paid by the Group under the Master Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB11.8 million.

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed
the 2012 Master Purchase Agreement and
entered into a new master agreement dated 13
October 2015 (the “2015 Master Purchase
Agreement”). The 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on
31 December 2018. Upon expiry of the term, the
2015 Master Purchase Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed
for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement for
each of the three year ending 31 December 2018
have been set at RMB40.0 million, RMB50.0
million and RMB60.0 million.
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Purchase of Facilities from Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
dated 13 October 2015 with Mr. DONG Li
(the “2015 Master Facilities Purchases
Agreement”) which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Mr. DONG Li’s associates, and
Mr. DONG Li’'s associates will sell to members of
the Group, battery facilities. The purchase price of
battery facilities by the Group shall be determined
at 8% discount to the average purchase prices of
similar battery facilities as obtained by the Group
from two independent third parties 30 days prior
to the date of relevant purchase order. The 2015
Master Facilities Purchases Agreement is for a
term commencing from 1 November 2015 up to
31 December 2017. Upon expiry of the term, the
Master Facilities Purchases Agreement for two
months ended 31 December 2015 and each of
the two years ending 31 December 2017 have
been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB100.0 million
and RMB100.0 million. For two months ended 31
December 2015, the aggregate amount paid by
the Group under the Master Facilities Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB24.4 million.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under paragraphs (A) and
(B) above and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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C. Connected transaction which is
exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement,
but subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements

Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Marshell”), Shanghai Dongyu
Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Dongyu”) and
Shanghai Dongming Marshell Electric Vehicle Co.,
Ltd (“Shanghai Dongming”) are wholly owned
subsidiaries of Mr. DONG Li, which make Guangdong
Marshell, Shanghai Dongyu and Shanghai Dongming
connected parties of the Company. Guangdong
Marshell, Shanghai Dongyu and Shanghai Dongming
entered into a purchase agreement dated 13 August
2015 with the Group, pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to purchase certain reserve power battery
facilities, including environmental protection facilities,
manufacture facilities and inspection facilities for
reserve power batteries and related products, from
Guangdong Marshell, Shanghai Dongyu and Shanghai
Dongming for a total consideration of RMB36 million.
Details of this transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 August 2015.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the aforementioned connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

On 21 December 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Mr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2015, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

13.30%
51.17%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

10.35%
25.68%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in these major suppliers and customers.

Relationships with Suppliers and
Customers

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulffil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering constantly high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Compliance with Laws and
Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

()  from Wednesday, 25 May 2016 to Monday, 30
May 2016 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 24 May 2016; and
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Report of the Directors EEE# %

(i)  from Monday, 6 June 2016 to Wednesday, 8 June
2016 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the
proposed final dividend, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for receiving the proposed final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 3 June 2016.

(i) The details of the Company’s branch share registrar are
as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2015.

Subsequent Events

No significant events have been taken place subsequent to
the balance sheet date.
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Auditor % E R

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & BIiERKRE &K SN BBATEZ 22 HAE
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- MR BRREENAAREERRAFT AT
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of - JEREE(T -

the Company.

The Company hasn’t change in its auditors in any of the Ri@BAE =4 AN FIEE T HAZHA -
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board REES=S

DONG Li 2=

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016 B ZE—R"F=A=+WMA
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

The Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company is in line with expectations of
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board comprises three executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprise Mr. DONG Li (chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”)), Ms. ZHAO Huan (chief executive
officer) and Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprise Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr.

GONG Fangxiong (newly appointed on 1 July 2015 as an
additional independent non-executive Director).
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The name of each Director, as at the date of the relevant
listing document, circular or announcement, is set out under
the section headed “Corporate Information” in this annual
report and is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Additional meetings are held when significant
events or important issues are required to be discussed and
resolved. During the year ended 31 December 2015, 14
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and one general meeting were held.
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Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee EFees EFEL505H RIRRAEHLEE
Meetings and General Meetings L

The attendance @ of each Director, by name, at the Board ®JEFHFEVEECgR EF2L8gegxaMK
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meetings R AEHE R (REER) HF0T
are set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/

Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number
Board Committee =~ Committee Committee of General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting?

HERE/  HERE/ HERE/ HEARS HERR/
Exg® HNZEET REZEE FHZEEE E VN

B 2EYE 2E¥AE g1 G g1 G LR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. DONG Li e 1414 - 2/2 2/2 11
Ms. ZHAO Huan Bzt 14114 - - - 11
Mr. Philip Armstrong Philip Armstrong

NOZNESKY NOZNESKY4L 4 6/14 - - - 11

Independent Non-executive B FHTES

Directors
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan EMERE 6/14 2/2 - 2/2 1/1
Mr. LIU Yangsheng AGEEE 6/14 2/2 2/2 - il
Mr. LAU Chi Kit ARG E 6/14 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Dr. GONG Fangxiong © EIEELO 414 12 0/2 0/2 0/1@
Notes: B 5

(1) Subject to Article 113.(2) of the Company’s Memorandum and (1)  RIEARQFNAELEZIE A4 M AEIE113.Q)1EA &

Articles of Associations and the law and regulations of Cayman REMEENRESR EFFEREFHA WEZ
Islands, attendance by a director at a meeting by electronic IRGEeEE LEeREEERLFE -

means, such as telephonic or video-conferencing, is counted as
physical attendance.

(2)  Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29  (2) BIAQARR-ZT—HFRA - +HHEBTHREERE
May 2015. EN

(3)  Dr. GONG Fangxiong was appointed as a Director on 1 July (38) EFH#EIHR - T—FAF+A-—BEZFTAES-

2015.

y
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. ZHAO Huan, Mr.
Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr.
LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. GONG Fangxiong
participated in this continuous professional development
mainly by reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, prevention of breaching Listing Rules and
disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder of
the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. With effect from 28 August 2014, Ms. ZHAO
Huan has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (b) review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior
management of the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; (d) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
(e) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (g) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
comprised four members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit
and Dr. GONG Fangxiong, the latter three being independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and the director service contract of
the newly joined independnent non-executive director. The
records of attendance of committee members, by name, at
the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 0/2
Note:

(1) Dr. GONG Fangxiong was appointed as the member of the
Remuneration Committee on 1 July 2015.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board;
(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
comprised four members, namely, Mr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and
Dr. GONG Fangxiong, the latter three being independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. DONG Li is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 0/2
Note:

(1) Dr. GONG Fangxiong was appointed as the member of the
Nomination Committee on 1 July 2015.

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (i) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (i) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (i) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee comprised
four members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU
Yangsheng, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Dr. GONG Fangxiong, all
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2015 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2014 annual audit and 2015
interim review work, auditor’'s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2014 annual and 2015 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.
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The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. GONG Fangxiong 1/2
Note:

1) Dr. GONG Fangxiong was appointed as the member of the Audit
Committee on 1 July 2015.

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG

Code:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015

BERMmE

BERZERENIE R BHES BRI EAD
TEYEREEERHADKER

EREHEFH L FEREI T

ERE
BEEHS 288 HE
NS 2/2
BIRGHE 2/2
RIEB AL 2/2
EHHHLO 1/2
B 2% -
() B+ —RFE+ A AEEAAEKE

é@ﬁé

N BRELES D BEMAEREE - ﬁi

TZA=T—RUEFENSHRE Iﬁ$
ﬁ@&%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ$%@ﬁ%%@%ﬁ%&
BOIAR AR EBE AP M IR EE -

PEELHLEE

EXCRAETEEERT

A =

BB EZ AT ES

o HERBMAATRCEERSEIHER
B
ERE

MRl KER %é%& A R FSE

BEEERBR



Corporate Governance Report {£¥%E

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
an effective internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and the Group’s assets and for reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The senior
management reviews and evaluates the control process,
monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address
the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board is of the opinion that the internal
control system of the Group is effective. The Board is also
reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources of
staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 79 to 80 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB$2.4 million and RMBO.4 million,
respectively.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015
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Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
N.T., Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.

Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate

resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.
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All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2015, and the Company’s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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Company Secretary YNETE

The Company has not engaged an external service provider N2 &) ERIEBINBIRIGIRIE R AH A RIRE - &K
as its Company Secretary, the company secretary of the RBIMRFWEREIREILEANR TN ELEE
Company, Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, is the chief financial ~ MEFR—{{E8 -

officer and one of the employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company  #Ri& R RIZE3.2015 A BME N EEEE K
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant FEZXNM AL NERBBEELE - ARME
professional training in each financial year. The Company B RAA RS HIEEE: R RE BB L ERIE
Secretary provided his training records to the Company k2N e KBRS S| MR STR 15/ LA
indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional FHJFAREREE -

development by means of attending in-house briefings,

attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

e

18 M AR

Ernst & Young RXEFAISEBER Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
EYQ i 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPIRRNEEIR Fax f8E: +852 2868 4432
? 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiERE2218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of HELTEBRFEMERAT
Leoch International Technology Limited ERRR

(Incorporated in the Cayrman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 81 to 254, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEED

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z-—NE+T-_A=+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—E-hF —T-mF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR® T ARET T
REVENUE U & 5 4,330,893 4,248,351
Cost of sales =R NN (3,561,184) (3,531,691)
Gross profit E A 769,709 716,660
Other income and gains H b U A B M 2s 5 70,567 75,644
Selling and distribution expenses HE D HAX (216,466) (202,255)
Administrative expenses TERAX (216,802) (220,072)
Research and development costs T EE A AR 6 (84,859) (154,430)
Reversal of impairment losses for assets ZEIE+EREMTA R A 7
in Zhaoqing Leoch Battery Technology ~ ([Z#EIE+ | ) & EE
Co., Ltd. (“Zhaoqing Leoch”) ErE R o 6 - 58,809
Other expenses Hap (75,568) (50,093)
Finance costs B SR AR 7 (104,673) (108,505)
Share of profit and loss of BiH—HEELER
a joint venture and an associate R/ L= O S| DSy 7= (7,352) (3,894)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Al R 6 134,556 111,864
Income tax expense FrisHiA > 10 (28,251) (30,073)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 106,305 81,791
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the parent NEER A 106,579 81,791
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR A (274) -
106,305 81,791
EARNINGS PER SHARE AR BEBREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ELEERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic BN RMBAR¥0.08%T RMBARH0.067
Diluted 8 RMBAK#0.08%T RVMBAEH0.067

BErEBRMERAA | —FT-AFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HILEE

2015 2014
—2-HF —F@OF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 106,305 81,791
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hi 2 mEks
Other comprehensive income REZABEFTSHEE
to be reclassified to profit or loss BarEM2EKE:
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investment: A HERE:
Changes in fair value N BEEE 19 27,662 2,346
Income tax effect Fristis 2 30 (4,149) (352)
23,513 1,994
Exchange differences on translation of & 15 SN ¥ K HFE 3, =58
foreign operations 1,513 13,019
Net other comprehensive income REEBRESR > EE
to be reclassified to profit or loss Bam ) H M2 ke
in subsequent periods R 25,026 15,013
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFEEHMEERE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MERFLIE 25,026 15,013
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME rEEEEHBHEAE
FOR THE YEAR 131,331 96,804
Attributable to: AT ATFEN:
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZF PN 131,605 96,804
Non-controlling interests 3H At (274) -
131,331 96,804

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E MBI R

31 December 2015

~RFF-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EHEF — Py
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%T ARET T
(Restated)
(geE7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W B N 13 1,818,984 1,878,105
Investment properties REYE 14 23,760 -
Properties under development BRERP Y 15 45,050 -
Prepaid land lease payments A LA EFE 16 84,739 128,738
Intangible assets mILEE 17 181,365 97,017
Investments in a joint venture and R—EEErER
associates B N BRI E 18 21,898 15,880
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 19 54,257 23,346
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUKEEWZE  WE K&
property, plant and equipment HEEE IR € 12,538 7,843
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 30 55,601 59,767
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 2,298,192 2,210,696
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 889,027 796,068
Completed properties held for sale HIERFEE BN 22 31,984 -
Trade and bills receivables g5 J'EJ%Z RIE eI 2R i 23 1,548,871 1,358,262
Prepayments, deposits and TERT IR nT EE &
other receivables E At K 24 119,085 66,404
Tax recoverable FEREIFL IR 31,497 61,260
Derivative financial instruments ﬁ Ao T A 20 4,290 6,575
Equity investments at fair value REEEFTABEEN
through profit or loss *’é wmHERE 25 22,543 -
Pledged deposits BT 26 580,401 622,514
Cash and cash equivalents BehkFEEEY 26 207,618 138,907
Total current assets REEELRE 3,435,316 3,049,990
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B S EMNFIBRENFEE 27 1,220,091 1,216,390
Other payables and accruals HERNFRIBREFEA 28 327,258 360,173
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIRTEE 29 1,471,043 1,139,497
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTE 20 56,397 43,571
Income tax payable FERT RIS 81,080 62,073
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 3,155,869 2,821,704
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 279,447 228,286
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,577,639 2,438,982
BETEBREMERAT | A FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %4 BigikR %

31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

2015 2014
—2-HF —F@OF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBAER
LIABILITIES 2,577,639 2,438,982
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERHIEEE 30 15,929 13,583
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRRITIEE 29 84,848 62,173
Deferred government grants B RE BT 47 B 31,280 32,550
Total non-current liabilities SEREN B EEE 132,057 108,306
Net assets BEFE 2,445,582 2,330,676
EQUITY Ea
Equity attributable to owners of BARBEAEAEGESR
the parent
Share capital & 7 31 115,843 115,742
Reserves Hitvf# 33 2,323,745 2,214,934
2,439,588 2,330,676
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 2 5,994 -
Total equity Wi 2,445,582 2,330,676
Dong Li Zhao Huan
2= HHE
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REnBEx
Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-T-AF+-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREAERE
Avallable-
for-sale
Share Share  investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  revaluation reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
e
REE( ERED
RA ROERE  AliEE BRERE B EERES i ZEH ai FERER  ER4E
RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO0 ~ RMB000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVMB'0O00  RMB'000
AEETL ARETT ARSBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Notes (note 31) (note 43) (note 33) (note33)  (note 33  (note 33) (note 33)
ik (Wsa1)  (Rigkad)  (M3RS3)  (WE3)  (WHERSS)  (MGRS3)  (WE33)
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-RE-f-H 114561 1,239,596 275,106 31,323 - 81,132 (11,936) 480530 2,210,301 - 2210301
Proft for the year REEET - - - - - - - 81,791 81,791 - 81,791
Other comprehensive income REREMZEYE:
for the year:
Changes n fair value of AEHEREALEE
available-for-sale investment, 29 NBHE
net of tax - - - - 1,994 - - - 1,994 - 1,994
Exchange differences on ranglation ~ BEENEBNELZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 13,019 - 13,019 - 13,019
Total comprehensive income REERENREE
for the year - - - - 1,994 - 13,019 81,791 96,804 - 96,804
Exercise of share options IR 31 160 2,504 - (1,410) - - - - 1,254 - 1,254
Exercise of warrants e RRESR 20 1,081 18,260 - - - - - - 19291 - 19,201
Equity-settled share option IEREERRERS
arangements - - - 3,026 - - - - 3,026 - 3,026
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - - - 3,880 - (3,880) - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-RmETZA=1-H 115,742 1,260,360 275,106 32,939 1,99 85,012 1,083 558,441 2,330,676 - 2330676
# Allocation of the proposed final 2014 dividend has been adjusted ~ * DEFER-T—NFRARECRIERNFERS T

for in accordance with the current year’s presentation, which is

described in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

WATE - BRI FHBR B T 3R A M 2. 44t
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R ER

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATEEAEE
Available-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option  revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
e
REEf EiRE

kx RORER SRR BREGRRE R EERES #FE  REEA At FERER  BnAE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:n
Notes (note 31)  (notedd)  (note33)  (note33)  (note33)  (note33)  (note 33)
ik (HaEs1)  (Maidd)  (WiEss)  (WES3)  (MEESS)  (MXss)  (HW&39)

At 1 January 2015 W=F-1%-A-A 115,742 1,260,360 275,105 32,939 1,994 85,012 1,083 558441 2,330,676 - 2,330,676
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 106579 1065579 (274) 106,305
Other comprehensive income FERAMRENE:
for the year:
Changes n fair value of avalable- AHLERENLEE
for-sale investment, net of tax 28 NRHE - - - - 23,513 - - - 23513 - 23,513
Exchange differences on translation ~ RESZNEHHES R
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1,513 - 1,513 - 1,513
Total comprehensive income FERRENRES
for the year - - - - 23,513 - 1,513 106,579 131,605 (274 131,331
Exercise of share options fifeERE 31 101 937 - (587) - - - - 451 - 451
Final 2014 dividend paid BNZE-mERHRS 11 - (239%) - - - - - - (28999 - (289%9)
Equity-settled share option NEREERRERS
arangements - - - 855 - - - - 855 - 855
Capital contribution from FHERBRTE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 6,268 6,268
Appropriations to reserves EiERE - - - - - 16,526 - (16,526) - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+ZA=1-A 115,843 1,237,298 275,105 33,207 25,507 101,538 2,506 648,494° 2,439,588 5994 2,445,582

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * WERBRAKGEVTBERNERANZEEREH
of RMB2,323,745,000 (2014: RMB2,214,934,000) in the AR®2,323,745,000c (ZZE—F: AR
consolidated statement of financial position. 2,214,934,0007T ) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z-—NE+T-_A=+—HLEFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —T—MF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR® T AREF T
(Restated)
(&eE=5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBABASRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 7t Bl ) 134,556 111,864
Adjustments for: TP FIEELRE:
Finance costs LUR IV 7 104,673 108,505
Interest income B U A 5 (15,925) (14,055)
Net loss on financial instruments AAEEZEESFAERN

at fair value through profit or loss, net TR THEZBEFHE 6 37,391 44,881
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of BEVE WEK

property, plant and equipment FEEENERS

(Yezs) 6 3,114 (8,918)
Share of profit and loss of JElE—MEE “ﬁ%&

a joint venture and an associate 5?3 ERAEFREE 7,352 3,894
Depreciation 13 190,320 182,888
Amortisation of prepaid il N T b AR E R IE 5

land lease payments 16 1,864 2,210
Amortisation of intangible assets | B EE 17 27,880 21,179
Amortisation of deferred 3R RE B8 #e B 4 8E

government grants (1,270) (957)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W IBERE 23 1,247 1,625
Reversal of impairment losses EERETEERE

for assets in Zhaoging Leoch ErE RO 6 - (58,809)
Impairment of other items of property, HEmwZE HE&

plant and equipment I B RE 13 1,569 -
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of 175 (EREREE) &

inventories 6 (2,836) 4,717
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—fHBEA AR cWE 6 (367) -
Loss on a fire incident N 5)\5 =PS 6 30,988 -
Equity-settled share option expenses DA i E AR 2 6 855 3,026

521,411 402,050
Increase in inventories FEEM (121,111) (78,492)
Increase in trade and bills receivables 2 5 el 200E 2 ek
=5 11 (191,856) (261,239)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BN FIE 5] & KR E A
other receivables 7 LT3R T8 38 1 (50,508) (7,335)
Changes in fair value of derivative Mii @Elﬂﬁfﬂg@
financial instruments, net FE)F %E (10,839) 4,464
(Decrease)/increase in trade and = % Ft“ ﬁ RIE N e BB
bills payables / 0 (19,683) 117,137
Increase in other payables and accruals TﬂJ,TE ﬁ EBEREFER
0 22,255 29,686
Cash generated from operations KEmMERe 149,669 206,271
Income tax paid 2 ﬁ Frig %t (6,881) (21,234)
Net cash flows from operating activities & 2 /5 E) 115 mEFE 142,788 185,037
BE+EBREMERAR | —T—HAFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BHE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+—HItEE

2015 2014
—E-EHE —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBFTT
(Restated)
(#&=5))

Net cash flows from operating activites ~ &£&FF SRS REF5 142,788 185,037
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHNRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2B 13,974 14,055
Proceeds from disposal of an associate  F& & — [ % 2 B1HY

Fri5 18 1,017 -

Purchases of items of property, EEYE HEAKEEHR

plant and equipment (199,092) (95,410)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEWE BER

property, plant and equipment BB E WS RUR 9,529 28,412
Investment in the joint venture REZE N FIRIRE (12,340) (1,201)
Proceeds from disposal of REEFEEMNSERIE

intangible assets - 722
Additions of the available-for-sale B ek==5 "= ¥z0b:Pill

investment (3,249) (10,500)
Additions of intangible assets | & E/IE M (112,228) (27,333)
Purchase of a land use right BEA T F A 16 (11,737) (59,330)
Purchase of equity investments BEANBEEZIHTA

at fair value through profit or loss BRHRAEE (36,022) -
Realised gain from equity investments NABEEHTAEBRZN

at fair value through profit or loss f& AR E BB #IR M 6 2,038 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities % & /& 2 Fit Fl 89

REMEFE (348,110) (150,585)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE

ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance expenses A% {5317 FKREE /TR 31 451 1,254
New bank borrowings b2l Fifﬁﬂ Fi‘*‘ 2,427,415 1,382,899
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (2,081,180) (1,404,814)
Interest paid EAHE (104,673) (108,505)
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRRIEZH TS RIA 20 - 277
Capital contribution from FEERERATE

non-controlling shareholders 6,268 -
Final 2014 dividend paid B = —FEREARE (23,999) -
Proceeds from exercise of warrants TR RRIEBNEE %’)’\ 20 - 12,032
Decrease in pledged deposits E AT TR 42,113 62,289
Receipt of government grants WO ER K S 475 B - 6,647
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&HRERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-hF —T-mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T AR®BFTT
(Restated)
(FeE%)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEEAE, (FTA)
financing activities REMEFE 266,395 (47,921)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRBEZEWE M
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) B8 61,073 (13,469)
Cash and cash equivalents REVHEE R
at beginning of year HeEEY 138,907 138,105
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHNTE FH
changes, net 7,638 14,271
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNRER
AT END OF YEAR HEEEY 207,618 138,907
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeERBESEEYEHRINT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTE 8 26 207,618 138,907

BErEBRMERAA | —FT-0AFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R AR B

31 December 2015

-z
==

1.

—RFF=A=+—H

Corporate And Group
Information

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
principally engaged in the manufacture, development
and sale of lead-acid batteries.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company
is DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited, which is
the trustee of a discretionary trust established by Mr.
Dong Li and the beneficiaries of the trust are family
members of Mr. Dong Li.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

Corporate And Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

1. REIREBER (&)

FRANBARZER

ARREEHBARNENT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ERE BRTR KRR
WEAR RY/#MAS BEWY BREX EREAN TEREH
Direct Indirect
EE B
% %

THETEHERAR 11 March 2003 PRC* US$72,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) ZZT=%=f+-AH I 72,000,000% 7T manufacture and sale of
(Jiangsu Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

IHETENERAR (THEL]) RARR BHENEEREE

B

EERTERRINERAA 9 May 2005 PRC* 1S$34,365,975 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
{Zhaoging Leoch Battery Technology ~ —EZHFRANA I 34,365,975% 7T lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd)) (‘Zhaoging Leoch’) HENHEERRES

EEETERRITBRAR
([EEEL])

EENENTEREMERAR 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology ZEERFEAZtAR HEY 10,001 455% 7T acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (‘Anhui Uplus’) HENHEERRES

ZENEANERRTERAR
([R@HENE])

BT RERRTERAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Shenzhen Leoch Battery “AMNERAZ+RA  hE AR #20,000,0007 manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd.) lead-acid batteries

BT RERRTERAR RARR BHENEENEE

B

FEMETHERERRMERAT 27 November 2002 PRC* RMBS3,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Dongguan Leoch Battery kS k3 e AR 3,500,007 lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltdl) +—A=t++8 HEMEERRESD

REMBLHERERIMERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMis:

31 December 2015
—T—hF+=-ZAR=+—H

1. Corporate And Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. 2AREEEH (&)

FRANBARZER (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/  registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ERE BRTR KRR
WEAR RI/EMAH EEBY BREXR BRAML TREH
Direct Indirect
EE 53
% %
EMNETRERRITARA 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery “E-Z£+f-t+=R =& AR100,0007 HENRETH
Technology Co., Ltd.)
BHRBLRBRRITERAA
Kinetic Growth International Limited 11 January 2008 Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
('Kinetic Growth’) ZZT\5-A+-B B# 28T HENRETH
ERERARLR ([88])
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ 1US$200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’) ZET=FXATER EEC 200,000% 7T HENRETH
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale
(“Leoch Power Supply’) ZZTMENRTNR B 12,000,000/ 7T of lead-acid batteries
B8R (ER)ERAA REZRARSEE TS
(B8R B
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BvI™* US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’) “EFRE-F-t/\B RERTEE™ iE REER
([Honour Label |)
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BvI™* US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year') “EELE-F-+RA  RERTEE™ iE REER
([Peak Year |)
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BvI™* US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon’) ZEEHE-ATRA EBAXEE™ %7 REAER
([ Shieldon | )

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R Mz

Corporate And Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

31 December 2015

1. REIREBER (&)

RRANBARZER (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/  registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ERE BRTR KRR
WEAR R/ EMA S EEHY HREX BRAM TREH
Direct Indirect
E# 53
% %

Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale
(“Leoch Battery Company’) ZZTHENAZTRA BH 1,000,000/ of lead-acid batteries
(ILeoch Battery Company |) RERRARSBEHRE

B

Nanjing Leoch Battery Technology 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Co,, Ltd. “EERE=RATER HE AR 300,000 HENEREEH

ARETRERRITERAF

Beijing Leoch Engineering 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co, Ltd. “ZERE+-ATEA  hE AR#1,000,0007 HENBESH

IRELRERRIERAF

Kunming Leoch Engineering 25 May 2006 PRC* RMB500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. “EEXERA-tREA  HE AR500,0007 HENRETH

ERBTRTRRIERAF

Xining Leoch Engineering 25 November 2006 PRC* RMB700,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. “FTRE+-F-tRHA HE ARE700,0007 HENRETH

BEBTRTRRMERAF

Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries

RNETERRITERA A ZERHEARZTLR  HE AR 1,000,007 HERRESH

Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BvI™* Us$e 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited —Z-Z%1A=H RERIHE™ 6ET REER
(‘Catherine Holdings’)

([ Catherine Holdings |)
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31 December 2015
—-=F

T-h&E+=-A=1+—8

1.

Corporate And Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMis:

1. 2AREEEHN (&)

FRANBARZER (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ERE BRTR KRR
WEAR RI/EMAH EEHY BREX BREAL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE 53
% %

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore $G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’) —Z-TEMARA g 2,000,000%7 A1 7T HENRETH
(ILeoch Battery Pte. | )

Leoch International Holding 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 - 100 Investment holding
Pte. Lid. “E——ENA=t+-B #HiE TR REZR

Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp. 26 Qctober 2010 PRC* HK$321,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(*Anhui Leoch Power’) ZE-SFTAZ+RA  HE 321,000,000 7¢ lead-acid batteries

ZHRTERRGARAA HERBENRES)
([ZBETER])

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

ZE-ZF-RCtRH HEEE 337,712,000 lead-acid batteries
HEBREL HERBERRERD
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
ZE-ZftA=t-H OE 50000060 E & 1t HEREEEH

Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help’) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
(Big Help ]) “Z-—FRATNE  BE 18T REZR

THBEEZERAA 29 October 2014 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Jiangsu Siting Real Estate Co., Ltd)  —Z-ME+A-+hHE HE AR 20,000,007 RELER
(“Jiangsu Siting’)

IHBEEXERAR (NIHEE])

BHREAER (R ERAR 17 June 2014 PRC* RMB264,807,141 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development ZE-NE~ATER HE AR264,807,1417C RELER

(Shenzhen) Limited)
BHREAER (R ERAR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R Mz

Corporate And Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

31 December 2015
—E—hAF+=-RA=+—H

1. REAIREBES (&)

FRANBARZER (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Date of incorporation/  registration Issued and interest attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ EME BRTR KRR
WEAR RI/EMA S EEBY HREX BREAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 53
% %
BENHINERAT 10 October 2014 PRC* - - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Battery Technology Limited) ~ —Z—M4+A+A I REER
BrENHINERAT)
Leoch Trontek Battery Pvt 8 August 2015 India INR20,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
“Z-1f\RNR g 20,000,000 E E lead-acid batteries

PRC represents the People’s Republic of China excluding
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and
Taiwan.

ok

USA represents the United States of America.

BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

HERHENEET

- hEEPEARANE  TRERBEESES
AITHE - R EDRPIRFRITTRR k6 & -

o RBEENBRARE -

o REBRIEEREBEARS-

ERIHEFERREARERFEEERAENY
BRHEAREEEFEZERN D 2 AAF ZHE
RE-EXZERR/MINHDEMMBRRZERN &
EREENITE-
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and the available-for-sale investment which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

1R EAE

A EH IR TIRIR BRI S RS LR LA K
BERBGPINBBER RS BRMEHRS
EABREERETENZ B AN ER
TRt - 2 TR SRR TR IRE 2 KA E B
wmELETESRIA AABEEZEHH AR
m2%$&§&Thﬁ%&§E?@ﬁE@
SN RFEVBHRBRRAARE ([ARM])
25 BRRBERIN A BESHEZREZ
ETITe

BOFEE

ZEGEVMBRREBAKENBE=
—£¢+;H—+—Etﬁfm%%ﬁ%
MEARIIAR TE&&W&T%ZE%(
EEBIEER) EAKER2EFRER
BEMBZAIEBEBA AL %ﬁi%ﬁ%
A WEESARIRE R A EREE N AT E
Bl 558 (AR TF 2 N A BUR S B s e
TMEIRE R R 2 EREE)) - IR AR EH
BIEHItE-



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2 14REE%E (4#&)

BOEE (&)

HARAEZLAZREARREARNERER
RS BLERN DRAZ B RIREBR G
HEGHAHBIRERRZENREEE—
UIRRAEERER 81

@ HERFREQRHEMEERBEAZANR
7

o) HMEHRBMELEZEN: &

(C) ZKE@ZTXZ?*%&/ E?XZK

B8 2~ RIS ) 2 B A5 ik 2 H s B4R
Rl WHRA -G BRER KB AR
ZEBEMAEEISENE 2 BRFHRE A
B WHEEGE AREZSENER 2K
Blke

BEakEMEERRESEEBBRASERY
RBZHEA AR s B S BIRE
Prrgas ek IR B AL - EREEBIAK B R AR
SBENAAESERNIEENAE g W
A %ﬂﬁ&iﬁémaﬁf‘iﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁE—ir%%(;ﬁ%
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMsE

31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2 14REE%E (4#&)

98

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is
described below:

(@)

Amendments to IAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined
benefit plans. The amendments simplify the
accounting for contributions that are independent
of the number of years of employee service,
for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage
of salary. If the amount of the contributions is
independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted to recognise such contributions
as a reduction of service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have defined benefit plans.
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(o) The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle issued in December 2013 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. Details of the
amendments that are effective for the current year
are as follows:

o IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that
an entity must disclose the judgements
made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including a
brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments
also clarify that a reconciliation of segment
assets to total assets is only required to be
disclosed if the reconciliation is reported
to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group.

° IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the
treatment of gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation
of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not apply the
revaluation model for the measurement of
these assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(b)

(continueq)

° IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity
that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to related
party disclosure requirements. In addition,
an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred
for management services. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not receive any management
services from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle issued in December 2013 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. Details of the
amendments that are effective for the current year
are as follows:

° IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies
that joint arrangements but not joint
ventures are outside the scope of IFRS 3
and the scope exception applies only to the
accounting in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself. The amendment
is applied prospectively. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as the
Company is not a joint arrangement and the
Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(c) (continueq)

° IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can
be applied not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39 as
applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the
annual period in which IFRS 13 was initially
applied. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply
the portfolio exception in IFRS 13.

° IAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
IFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in IAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or
a business combination. The amendment
is applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as there
was no acquisition of investment properties
during the year and so this amendment is
not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the
amendments to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
IAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to Investment Entities. Applying the
IFRS 10, IFRS Consolidation Exception’
12 and IAS 28
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
IFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations'
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative'
IAS 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2015
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 & MMM R A S Y B PR B 7
International Financial Reporting HWEZER (&)
Standards (continued)

Clarification of Acceptable Methodls R EREI6R R BT RATE RS
of Depreciation and Amortisation’ PR SR £385%
BT A

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 38

104

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial
IAS 27 Statements'

Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of IFRSs'
2012-2014 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

B RS 6R R X LELEYN
B & ERI R4
MIERTA

RRERAETRN  BUYHFHA B L
EHES

FEUNE_T-—FE ZRARYBHEEL
I kS Gk LEES

! MZE—RF-A—BH &R FEH

January 2016 SR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZZ-N\F—-A B z&REZFEH
January 2018 SR

8 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual 8 HRARZZE—RNF—A—B 2 EBRBEHNTF

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016
and therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in 1AS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively.

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply
the relevant principles for business combinations in
IFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2015
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 & 78 oK A AV B R B 7%

106

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. In July 2015, the IASB
issued an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-year
deferral of the mandatory effective date of IFRS 15 to 1
January 2018. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on
1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

include narrow-focus

()  the materiality requirements in 1AS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may
be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements;
and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the
principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
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upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.
2.4 Summary of Significant 2AFEETTHEME
Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint REBERATREELEZRE
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a BERNRAREEREE R DR20%IZ
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the ﬂ——?éE’JEHHHxZME RS E LA B AR
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to VER -BAXEBNIEERNZ2EREY

%E’Jﬁﬁk&%gﬂi AR FRE AT BOR R
BT AT

exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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31 December 2015
—T—hF+=ZRA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AFBETTHERME (&)

110

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and the available-for-sale investment at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-RA=+—H

QAT EETTHERME (£Z)

VAN
YNIIH

i

Ei

bl

AEEREREHRIZANBESEETE
TRTAE RAEEESDTARSNERE
BRERAMFHERE - AABEATHZH
ERFERPEAFR ST HEEEMIE
SERABEANNER AABEFET
BROEEEXERRENRINEESLE
EXEmSR (EEIETHBELT) ZAE
EMGET TRAZEBIEMBARAKE
EREANTIS BEXBBENAERTD
ENTiG2EE REEXABEER AN
BT E (BRMS2RERBRRENRE
ROBNERITE) °

FeREENAEETERT AHH2AE
ERBERAZEE &R MREREIHZ
BEHETHERERS RREREN S —
M52 HE LB MR e

AEEFMERARTRABREABRED BE
UHFFEAREBENMGETE LEEER
HEABRGABBENEERDERTAE
R ABUR -

BErEBRMERAA | —FT-AFFR

111



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMsE

31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) AREETE (EF)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured FIERAAREBERTIMBHRERAEIHENE
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised ERAEDEREAABEFEEEME B
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, BEANKEEHABBRZATAABESR
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the D

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) F—Hk — ERNEREESEERERT
in active markets for identical assets BHMmE (CREHE)
or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques FH — EREQAAEEEMSEBE
for which the lowest level input AOAEBR (B HEE) &K
that is significant to the fair value B ABUREES A

measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques F=H — EREQAAEEENSEBE
for which the lowest level input RO BR&EEE AZE
that is significant to the fair value EET A

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the MIRE B EERN A B REERNEER
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group BEME TAEEEBNSRERREFFT
determines whether transfers have occurred between moE (EREAAEEIEEEMEEE
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation AHEERABE) EER R EETRZER
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the %o

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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31 December 2015

—RFF=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-RA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued) BEAL ()
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b BEATRBEREANATRGNELSE:

conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the ) %ERBEATXSEBR-SENX
same group; I=ENE]E

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of i —EBRASEE(HIZ—FEMN
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or nE B AR KREBRNEA
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); A REE A EDE:

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of iy ZELHRAEBAFR-F=/
the same third party; BEDE:

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity v —ERAF=ITNEELET
and the other entity is an associate of the S—ERBERA—F=-MEER
third entity; al;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan V) ZEBARASESHEASEEH
for the benefit of employees of either the ENERBMEENEMENES
Group or an entity related to the Group: BBt 2R AT S

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by V) FZERBAEPTIALES - SR
a person identified in (a); PEH

(viil a person identified in (a)() has significant Vi) REOPTEBIATHEREREEAF
influence over the entity or is a member of L BZER (HZEEYRA)
the key management personnel of the entity FEEEBABN—EKE: X
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of Vi) ZERIZEEMBEEE ZEM
which it is a part, provides key management KERBRASESRAEE &
personnel services to the Group or to the RNEEHEREBRAB RS

parent of the Group.

BELEBRRWERAR | — T - AFFR 115



116

31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMsE

QAT EESTTHRBE (&)

ME BERRBERTE (&)

FREIBETEXIZERAGANET BE
KHER IR AN R EESEY IR i e
ETIRITE - ﬁ$@?§§$7ﬁiﬁﬂiﬂfﬂﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬁfﬂ
M E BRI T EMASEK A AR EAE
BEEeBAETNBHREA - EETIERT
IRAEARENHEABEEERNME -
TR B S o

BEN=

REWMERFRMESMAR, HEREE
MmEFH 2 L RBF 2 (BEAENE
BREMFEZEBEMRBEYFEEHNZHEE
) MIEMEEESHEEY X RBHA
TETE R « SN A B RS TIHE M A
Z 1 RS TR o A FEWEBRAKA (2
ERBUA)FTE-RERERR REYE
BAABAE REHTE R REHRER R
518 o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the cost of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the land
costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other cost directly attributed to such properties
during the period of construction.

Properties under development are initially classified as
non-current assets and transferred to current assets
under the category of properties held for sale when
the construction of the relevant properties commences
and the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and
buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on
the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition as cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2015
—F-R%t+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant 2AXTESTTHERME (£)
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets BRERHMWEMEE (&F)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued) #EHE ()

Available-for-sale financial investments AP ESRIEE

Available-for-sale financial investments are non- AMEHESRMINESR T RIEEMBRARE
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity MEBEESTHIETES R EE - BEIEEE
investments and debt securities. Equity investments BE XNIEETARANEBEESH T ABR
classified as available for sale are those which are WRAKREREAHILE BETHAEH
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as PR EFERENE & F KR s m &1
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in BB SRR ZEAR -

this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial istERE A E e RIRERBUAAAE
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, B2 REBWASEERATHEERE
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other BhREERAER BERIERRE (R
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale FHE S BB BR R R ) IR ERETEE
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is BE (Rt aEs BB HEEIRES M
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss RBEEHHOPEBRER)BIL-BEAHLE
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until BRI EFTHREN A E AR B 5 Bl 2 s A
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the Blas MR B Es - B E T [Was iR ] BT
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available- RN ERRAER REHME -

for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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31 December 2015
—E-RFEt+ZA=1+—H
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the statement of
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group'’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continued to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset or
a group of financial assets have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investrments (continued)

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
loans and borrowings as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRMIEE

QAFEESTTHRBE (&)

Frig®i (&)

EXRBEEAEANAERER &
EARBMTIRE R N RE AR AR RRER
HE LA 28 FE SR8 A1 A A K 85 R 400 ET
Z2 UREERPARER L AR AHR
HEERR - FRIE:

o BEEMIBEEMTAEENAEN—IE
#%‘W—\{%Q%EP%&%ﬂﬁ%ﬁwa’ﬂ?ﬂﬁ
R =5 WX SETRBE T E
= aJr/m%IJJT PR B R BH A B8
&

o TIETFRHIBAR MEEARMIRED
EHRERER REHAEENTER
{EFRPE RS2 R AT BER Al R A SR @ M
B RARRTOEM BN EHE A B A
xR

REREHRGEHREAEENRAE
WHIEETBA RAERTEN A AL EH
AR I IH AT BRI R B EE A LE © RHERR
HEET IR B E NS R E BRBHRE
WHH B HEARTOENIEH 2 8B AT A
EFERIR B E R 1R R



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grants account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

@)

©®)

()

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred, the title has
been passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model, further details of
which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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31 December 2015
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2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTHERME ()
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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31 December 2015
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. In prior years, final dividends proposed by
the directors were classified as a separate allocation
of reserves within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Following
the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#RRMIEE

31 December 2015
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3.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independent of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Recognition of a deferred tax liability for withholding
taxes

The PRC New Corporate Income Tax Law, which
became effective on 1 January 2008, states that the
distribution of dividends by a foreign-invested enterprise
established in Mainland China to its foreign investors,
from its earnings of 2008 or thereafter, shall be subject
to withholding taxes at an applicable rate of 5% or
10%. The directors had assessed whether it is probable
for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute dividends
out of their profits earned after 1 January 2008. For
details, refer to note 30 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2015
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3.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires
management’s judgement and estimates. Provision is
made when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the debts. Where the actual
outcome or future expectation is different from the
original estimate, the differences will impact the carrying
value of the receivables, doubtful debt expenses and
write-back of impairment of trade receivables in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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31 December 2015
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3.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful life of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2015 was RMB40,765,000 (2014:
RMB29,165,000). Further details are included in note
30 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 32 to the financial statements,
the fair value of options granted under the share option
scheme is determined using the binomial lattice model.
The significant inputs into the model were the weighted
average share price at the grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price, expected volatility of the underlying
shares, expected dividend yield and expected life of
options.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2015, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB176,518,000 (2014: RMB91,619,000).
Further details are included in note 17 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

Operating Segment Information 4. &5 IER

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale REBREHNRESONRERIEE XS
of lead-acid batteries. For management purposes, MEEMS AEEBBEHEERGE X
the Group operates in one business unit based on its TEEAL - B — B E  E6 - BIRGE R SHE i
products, and has one reportable segment which is the & B -

manufacture and sale of lead-acid batteries.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form WHEAFHE L D EPAMBMK i RS E 5
the above reportable operating segment. Z o
Geographical information HWEER
(@) Revenue from external customers @ KEIEEFHIM
2015 2014
— —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
PRC H 2,145,296 1,954,397
European Union (Eg:l 672,594 763,170
USA ES 696,675 668,594
Other Asian countries/areas Ha MR, & 582,827 608,936
Other countries H B = 233,501 253,254
4,330,893 4,248,351
The revenue information above is based on the EXHREERTIEREF RIS
location of the customers. e
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

4. Operating Segment Information 4. K& IER (&)

(continued)
Geographical information (continued) wEER (&)
(b)  Non-current assets b FEREEE
2015 2014
—ZE-8F —T—MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
PRC a3 2,059,419 2,004,068
Other countries/areas HBER @ 128,915 123,515
2,188,334 2,127,583
The non-current asset information above is based IR ESEEER I ERZEFEEN
on the locations of the assets and excludes UESN B TEESE T A RIELER
financial instruments and deferred tax assets. HEE-
Information about a major customer EHE—BXEEFNEHR
Revenue of approximately RMB440,176,000 (2014: AR ¥E440,176,0007T (ZZE—HF : ARKE
RMB600,250,000) was derived from sales to one 600,250,0007T ) 2 Wiz 22K B ¥ — = P A8
customer, including sales to a group of entities which & (BERBREHEANEZET P RESI
are known to be under common control with that SEERNEE) BRAKERE_Z—T
customer, exceeding 10% of the Group’s total revenue FHZA=1T—HILFEEKZEAI10% -

for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Revenue, Other Income And 5.

Gains

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

Wz ~ E AU A K W

B

W RPrE MR RRE - AR Bl

sold. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is WA R EE A HTEAT -
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Revenue Wz
Sale of goods HEEY 4,330,893 4,248,351
Other income and gains H A & Wz
Rental income el A 2,567 147
Bank interest income RITH BUA 15,925 14,055
Government grants* BT 48 B 35,629 37,700
Sale of scrap materials HERER 4,947 2,534
Foreign exchange gains, net HNRETE W W55 - JFFR 7,864 3,433
Gains on disposal of items of property, BREWE  HE &
plant and equipment HEIE B M - 8,918
Others ) 3,635 8,857
70,567 75,644

The government grants represent various cash payments

and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement to its
investment and technological innovation. There are no
unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

- BT R T5 451 T IRAF B FI 4 T AR E M &
BIREKIARAMEL - ASENIRE R M A% -
BEAHEZEHMNREER G LA E
I8 o
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

6. Profit before Tax 6. BiAEmF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after $EIE’] AT TSR (FFA) AT IE
charging/(crediting): Bizst8
2015 2014
—ZE-8F —T—MmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ ARBTRE AR®BTRT

Cost of inventories sold FrEFE KA 2,990,154 2,958,367

Employee benefit expense (including EE®FIFAX (BRIEES

directors’ remuneration (note 8)): B (FEEs) ) -
Wages and salaries HMETE 506,168 484,998
Performance-related bonuses MR AT 1,351 1,571
Equity-settled share option AR EE R
expenses BB ﬁé 53 855 3,026
Pension scheme contributions RIRE 2R 39,827 53,463
548,201 543,058
Amortisation of computer software P 1 4 £ 17 1,002 1,207
Research and development costs: ﬁﬂ ?é‘%%" :
Deferred development costs 05 E ) B P A 4 g
amortised* 17 26,3878 19,972
Current year expenditure RFEERX 84,859 154,430
111,737 174,402
Auditors’ remuneration ZHENEN & 2,400 2,350
Unrealised loss on: * ﬁ REE:
Forward currency contracts NREEEZIHEHABER
measured at fair value E’\] EHEBEL
through profit or loss 20,476 36,998
Warrants measured at fair value AABEEHF AER
through profit or loss B 3R A% 7R 20 - 5,088
Equity investments at fair value AREEZHTAER
through profit or loss R IR E 13,479 -
33,955 42,086
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31 December 2015
—F-R%t+ZA=+—H

Profit before Tax (continued) . BAn&H (&)
2015 2014
—2-HF —FOF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P AR¥TR ARETT

Realised (gain)/loss on: ﬁﬁﬂ%(”& )/ 58
Forward currency contracts NABEZEHFTA
measured at fair value through BmrEE%
profit or loss =¥ 10,839 (4,464)
Expiration/exercise of warrants wh%uﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ 20 (5,365) 7,259
Equity investments at fair value NABEZEHFTA
through profit or loss BaaEatRE (2,038) -
3,436 2,795
Net loss on financial instruments AABEEHTAEBREN
at fair value through profit or loss* T HE R FE 37,391 44,881
Depreciation of items of property, Y BRE REEEE
plant and equipment e 13 190,320 182,888
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT L FH & BB # 5K
lease payments 16 1,864 2,210
Reversal of impairment losses for BOoERETEERE
assets in Zhaoging Leoch:** 7=
Property, plant and equipment WE B RE 13 - (56,1793)
Prepaid land lease payments TEf L E IR 16 - (2,636)
- (58,809)
Impairment of trade receivables* B 5 W IBERE 23 1,247 1,625
(Reversal of impairment)/ FE CRE#RE),
impairment of inventories DEREN (2,836) 4,717
Impairment of other items of property, E b 4% - BiE &
plant and equipment* HEIE B RE 13 1,569 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of R E % « BE K& & E
property, plant and equipment, net* BB &EE, (M) -
SEER 3,114 (8,918)
Loss on a fire incident** NS RM 30,988 -
Gain on disposal of an associate B E— RS QA (367) -
Minimum lease payments under KEMHE THREAE
operating leases (B 7,800 7,369
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=+—H

6. Profit before Tax (continued)

*k

The amortisation of deferred development costs is
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Zhaoging
Leoch, had suspended its production operations in
accordance with the request of the local environmental
protection bureau to conduct self-examination and
enhancement of their production plants from July 2012
to October 2013. Although Zhaoqing Leoch resumed
operation in November 2013, considering the effect
of this suspension with a period of over one year, the
management performed impairment tests on property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments
and inventories of Zhaoging Leoch as of 31 December
2013, and recognised total impairment losses of
RMB168,049,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, management reassessed the
status of the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments. Management was of the view that
the economic performance of the property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments in Zhaoging
Leoch was, and would be, better than expected as a
result of the industry boom. According to the impairment
tests on these non-current assets as at 31 December
2014, a previously recognised impairment loss of
RMB58,809,000 was reversed.

Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss, impairment of trade receivables, impairment
of other items of property, plant and equipment, loss on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment and
loss on a fire incident are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On 24 March 2015, one of the warehouses of the
Group’s production factory in Huaibei city, Anhui, the
PRC, caught fire, resulting in losses on inventories and
property, plant and equipment of RMB70,235,000 and
RMB8,340,000, respectively. After taking into account of
the reimbursement received/receivable from the insurance
companies, a net loss of RMB30,988,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
current year.
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Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

7. BEF& RN

IR ADHTUT
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEFE 66,544 67,634
Interest arising from discounted bills BHIR I ELE WA B 38,129 43,939
104,673 111,573
Less: Interest capitalised BB ERMEFE - (3,068)
104,673 108,505
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BRI ETRA BB R EEHI5383(1)@) - ()
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of OFMERAT (HEEEFMZER) RHIFE2
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the HEBELFANESHESNT

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Fees we 628 324
Other emoluments: EAh <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & & 285 & B WEF 2,277 2,162
Performance-related bonuses* AR R TE AT 1,351 1,571
Equity-settled share option expenses A m A EERER X 115 446
Pension scheme contributions IRURAE R FT S 3% 77 10
3,820 4,189
4,448 4,513
* One executive director of the Company is entitled to . KRR — BT ESHRETIRE RSB
bonus payment which is determined as a percentage of R nfzan b EE 2l fIme

the profit after tax of the Group.

162 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(@) Independent non-executive (a) BYHFHITESE
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive MEIFRTESI N 2RSS

directors were as follows:

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
He BER NERGEE BB
we EVER  EREEEL BRERX B 5 ag

RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  AR%TRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

2015 —E-%E
Mr. Lau Chi Kit B GEE 193 - - - - 193
Mr. Gong Fangxiong* Eyp St 97 - - - - 97
Mr. Liu Yangsheng EDES 169 - - 29 - 198
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan BMELE 169 - - 29 - 198
628 - - 58 - 686
2014 “2-mEF
Mr. Lau Chi Kit BGEE 63 - - - - 63
Mr. Affred Chan'* REFHLE" 7 - - 180 - 251
Mr. Liu Yangsheng BGERE 9% - - 12 - 107
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EERE 9% - - 118 - 213
324 - - 310 - 634

BELEBRRWERAR | — T HFFR 163



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMsE

31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(@) Independent non-executive (@) BLFHITEE ()
directors (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the L () S8 S FEERT T EE S ST AN LA B
independent non-executive directors during the S (ZT—MF:E)-

year (2014 Nil).

* Mr. Gong Fangxiong was appointed as an * BEHHEER T —RFLtA—AE
independent non-executive director of the ZEAERRABINELIENTES -
Company on 1 July 2015.

*  Mr. Alfred Chan resigned as an independent * BRREEERZZE-—EFAA+LER
non-executive director of the Company on 17 BHIEARRINBYIERITES -
September 2014.
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) BMITES
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance- settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Fe BER NEREHE RAER
Hhe BENER  EREEEL BRERX AR ag

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETL  ARETR

2015 —E-If
Mr. Dong Li BRRA - 721 - - 73 800
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL T - 801 - 30 4 835
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky ~ Philip Armstrong
Noznesky’t £ - 749 1,351 27 - 2,127
- 2,217 1,351 57 7 3,762
2014 —T-mF
Mr. Dong Li BFLH - 794 - - 6 800
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL L - 631 - 72 4 707
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky —~ Philip Armstrong
Noznesky?t £ - 737 1,571 64 - 2,372
- 2,162 1,571 136 10 3,879
* Ms. Zhao Huan is also the chief executive of the * WEZEMARRENITHREH -
Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director FARETE A ERESFHEXRBNE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ERIMER R (ZF—ME &) -

during the year (2014: Nil).
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. h¥ZEmaHMES

The five highest paid employees during the year FAREERTHEEFR BRE=4®A(Z%
included three (2014: three) directors, details of whose —UE: =R)ESR BEHMEFEERR L
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of I8 FA - Hepm A (ZE—F M) IE
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two Ex ey MEENFTMNEFBEINT
(2014: two) non-director, highest paid employees are as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETRT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 288 & B ¥4& Fl 1,075 1,683

Equity-settled share option expenses iR EEBRERS 68 270

Pension scheme contributions R FIFHEIHE5R 5 28
1,148 1,981

The number of non-director, highest paid employees FTMBE T HEZIFEENRETMEE A

whose remuneration fell within the following band is as N

follows:

Number of employees

EEA"
2015 2014
—E—hfF —Z—UF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARETTTE
AR #1,000,0007C 2 2
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10.Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

LLeoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
in the range of 15% to 35% (2014: 15% to 35%) on
taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong current tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of the subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply. No provision
for Hong Kong profits tax has been made by Kinetic
Growth, Leoch Battery Company and Big Help as they
did not carry on any business in Hong Kong and had
no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong during the year.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

10. FTi5#%

REBRMAEENKE R REMENEED
AEEERREREEEL SR ENE
RS H -

RIEFASEHSHHRAFEN RRB]HBAER
A AVEE BRI FTEH

MR RER XA ST MM E R A
(Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon} Catherine
Holdings ) 7A 58 /8 B & A¥ S W1 MR 75 & S5 b Bh
(IR =R AN ) ok 48 A (T 27 - B 1 2%
= EYNSIE T C AP IES

Leoch Battery Corp.J3FAEBIFEMANSL - 785
EBBND SRS - LIRS 2= ﬁﬁ%'
FREEEF K PTE R T F16%%E36% (—
—PIE : N F15%E35% ) ©

NH Fﬁr%

BB BARENEE SRR EBTMKL
KB AR AR+ ERAERBOER - 20X
EME165% (T —MMF :165% )5t H - H
A #1 - Leoch Battery Company},Big Helpf
BARBBNEEMES  BRAFEAILE
REBEE SR ERBEF) - W
BIHREANGHRE-
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31 December 2015
—E-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

10.Income Tax (continued) 10. S8 (&

The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery Pte’s
application for the Global Trader Programme status on
24 May 2014. The provision for Leoch Battery Pte’s
current income tax is based on the tax rate of 10%
(2014: 10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group as determined in accordance with the new
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are
taxed at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus
were designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC
tax authorities in 2015 with an effective period of three
years and were entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%
for the year 2015.

FMEERR _E—NFRA -+ MBEH#
/ELeoch Battery Pte. B BIRIKE 5 I AY
A5 o Leoch Battery Pte. BNEAPTIS 7 JI% 5 R
10% (ZF— U4 1 10% ) T 12 Hfs -

SRR ER R BN E THBAREREESR
S FREIBNERRR S B B IR IB R B PR 1S
BE (R -_ZTTEN\F—H—BELERER)
TR 5 B 1 JE SR NI A25%6 KA TE 8 R 5+
o

THIEL R LBRREEN BRI
—E-AFRTEREE BRR AR
¥ HREMBZF M- AENHES
FHE B A15% -

The major components of income tax charge for the FREFEMMERZHAT:
year are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-hF —T-OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFTT
Current - PRC BIEAR A — 16,590 9,484
Current — Hong Kong BNHAR IR — & B 4,247 5,679
Current — Singapore BVHARH 18 — ¥ N3k 3,678 6,949
Current — USA BN EAT 18 — £ Y 1,373 1,500
Deferred tax IR JE TR IR 2,363 6,461
Total tax charge for the year FARIBS LB 28,251 30,073
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

- IO R [ 4B

10.Income Tax (continued) 10. RSB (48
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to BAEE KR HHB AR ZEMATERR (A
profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country in ) KA B R S B A A AR AT R B0 B
which the majority of the companies of the Group are SR R ER R ENHIER A
domiciled (i.e., the PRC) to the tax expense at effective R

tax rate is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR % ARETT %
Profit before tax Il 134,556 111,864
Tax at the applicable tax rate 1% 3@ A K5t E )
118 33,639 25.0 27,966 25.0
Tax concession for ETHEARN
certain subsidiaries RsER (20,504) (15.2) (3,879) (3.5)
Research and development AT %Ak 2 N304, 28
costs plus deduction (4,873) (3.6) (4,767) (4.3
Income not subject to tax BARB WS - - (14,703) (13.1)
Expenses not deductible LR b3
for tax 13,789 10.2 16,771 15.0
Tax losses not recognised AERBIAESE 7,442 5.5 8,685 7.8
Tax losses utilised from A
previous periods HIEE B (1,870) (1.4) - -
Effect on opening deferred tax %t & T 55 5
due to decrease in the HHYIERER IR
tax rate S0p-72 628 0.5 - -
Tax charge at the Group’s BREEERBE
effective rate FTEMTIERX 28,251 21.0 30,073 26.9
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31 December 2015

11

12.

—RFF=A=+—H

the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,352,776,179
(2014: 1,344,534,167) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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12.

.Dividends 1. &2
2015 2014
—E-hF — P4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR®F T

Final — 2.60 HK cents RE— & %2.6078 1L

(2014: 2.25 HK cents) per share ZE—HF:2.25%1l) 29,478 23,999
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to REE 7 BRI EBFAR RIRERIE

[ERFRAFRE LHESER-

NEEBERFE ARG
BREF

BRERNZF S EIIIRE Tjta%f“%
EABGFEEEMNREFRDETERARM
W9 81,352,776,1790 (=T — PO & -
1,344,584,167% ) REEFTE

BREERFCENIZGRAREBERFER

ABERMNSEEE SRR EBK
EFHEREFACETERREE (HEat

*”Hﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ) AR RERNE
MABREEEL BRGIFRITELRSL R
P B SR A 2 1T 1O T BRI P A B o
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12.Earnings per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s warrants as the exercise
prices were higher than the Company’s share price.
The effects of warrants were also excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as their effects would be
anti-dilutive.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

12.

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

Pt TN I
SRR (&)

uy

ut

AEEET-AF T A=t BLFE
F S B B R AR I S L R AR R B RO R AR
& ARTEESRARRNKRE -AEHE
“E-MOF+ZA=t+—BIFENERE
BRAMNEMES ARBEINZE ARH
FERBREENE-

BIREARNEERTHRE T BURATE -

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETT

Earnings 2R

Profit attributable to ordinary equity RARFTESRERK
holders of the parent, used - Dy | A S /N
in the basic and diluted earnings TimERRE ARG R

per share calculations

106,579 81,791
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMsE

31 December 2015
—E-RFt+A=1+—H
12.Earnings per Share Attributable 12. 8 A B BERIEE AEMWN

to Ordinary Equity Holders of BRERF (&)
the Parent (continued)

Number of shares

R A
2015 2014
—E-IfF —T-MmF
Shares dvi)
Weighted average number of ordinary RARETEERE $ BAZ
shares in issue during the year used in FADBITEBER
the basic earnings per share calculation INEFEHE 1,352,776,179 1,344,534,167
Effect of dilution — weighted average ey g -—LaR
number of ordinary shares: nkEFIgE -
Share options i I 1,383,438 3,259,327

1,354,159,617 1,347,793,494
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

13. 9% - W= K skt

Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
&2 BERERE BAERE RE IRRRfE ERIR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TTR AR®TT ARET T ARETT ARET TR ARETR AR#TR
31 December 2015 “E-RF+ZAZ1-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+-A=+-A
1 January 2015 k=Z-n%-A-H 686,988 1,345,535 28,009 28,801 170,231 212,410 2,471,974
Addtions B5 26,175 87,378 906 5,634 12,249 36,649 168,991
Transfer to investment BREERENE (Fi14)
properties (note 14) - - - - - (23,760) (23,760)
Transfers o 377 37,386 - - - (37,763) -
Disposals RE (9,514) (9,149) (1,398) (3,013) (3,629) S (26,703)
Exchange realignment 5 A% 1,404 - - (56) - - 1,348
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+=A=1+-H 705,430 1,461,150 21517 31,366 178,851 187,536 2,591,850
Accumulated depreciatonand R TE RHfE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+=A=+—H
1 January 2015 R-Z2-1£-f-8 (104,934) (355,146) (18,648) (20,196) (94,945) - (593,869)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (30,814) (119,862) (2,180) (3,597) (33,867) - (190,320)
Impairment HE - - - - - (1,569) (1,569)
Disposals RE 1,316 6,824 564 2,152 3,204 - 14,060
Exchange realignment B A (1,187) - - 19 - - (1,168)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RF+-A=T-R (135,619) (468,184) (20,264) (21,622) (125,608) (1,569) (772,866)
Net carrying amount: REFME:
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+-A=+—-H 569,811 992,966 7,253 9,744 53,243 185,967 1,818,984
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMsE

31 December 2015

—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

13. 9% BB K skt (&)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BT il BATRE HE TARZKE ERIE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTFT AREFT AR¥EFT ARBTT
31 December 2014 “E-WET-A=1-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 W-%-NE¥-A-A 606,970 1,202,416 28,242 27,565 171,554 397,836 2,434,583
Additions #R 15,043 46,49 226 1,763 1,246 30,180 94,942
Transfers -l 86,733 121974 - 203 703 (209,613) -
Disposals RE (21,758) (25,349) (459) (720) (3,272) (5,999) (57,551)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-MFET-A=T-H 686,988 1,345,535 28,009 28,801 170,231 212,410 2,471,974
Accumulated depreciation and ~ 23HTE RIEE:
impairment:
At1 January 2014 R-2-mE-A-8 (88911) (279673 (18,650) (16,733) (66,696) (34,448) (505,111)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (27,162) (117,344) (1,154) 4,190) (33,039) - (182,889)
Reversal of impairment AEEE 7,044 10,640 383 128 3,530 34,448 56,173
Disposals RE 4,095 31,231 773 599 1,259 - 37,957
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1-H (104,934) (355,146) (18,648) (20,196) (94,945) - (693,869)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 RZF-ME+=A=+—-AH 582,064 990,389 9,361 8,605 75,286 212,410 1,878,105

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB923,251,000 (2014
RMB770,821,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of
pledged assets, please refer to note 34.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

14.Investment Properties

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

14. 1R EY %

2015 2014

—E-EHF —E-HF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETF T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREE - -
Transfer from owner-occupied property ERAEA ABIENYE

(note 13) (MI3E13) 23,760 -

Carrying amount at 31 December R+tZA=+—BmEAE 23,760 -

The Group’s investment properties consist of two
industrial properties under construction in Mainland
China which were subsequently measured using the
cost model.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 35 to the financial
statements.

The fair value of the investment properties cannot
be reliably measured because the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range of reasonable fair
value estimates cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value.

AEBENRENEBRETEANEHMEER
RIEME ZFEMEREREAKARIG

E-°

ZERBEMERBLEHELHEE =T
B — SR IE R B R 15 R MY 135

BREMEAARBETERNSEFE HAER
AR BERGEAEAEMFHEENZE
ERTBF R AR E R (ER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMsE

31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

15.Properties Under Development  15. B R H ¥ %

2015 2014
—ZE-8F —T—MmF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ ARBTRE AR®BTRT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBMEEE - -
Additions NE 23,384 -
Transfer from prepaid land lease EEREEMN T

payments MHERIE 16 53,650 -
Transfer to completed properties HEBEZEESS

held for sale [wh735%7/ES 22 (31,984) -

Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—8H
BREAE 45,050 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

31 December 2015
—AFE+-A=+—8H

16.Prepaid Land Lease Payments  16.78{ L b ¥ E 7 1H

2015 2014
—E—hfF —E—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Cost: BN
At 1 January n—H—H 142,337 83,007
Transfer to properties under EREERRPYE
development (note 15) (FF3E15) (53,650) -
Additions NE 11,737 59,330
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 100,424 142,337
Accumulated amortisation: E-4: £
At 1 January n—H—H (11,827) (9,617)
Recognised during the year REFERHER (1,864) (2,210)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (13,691) (11,827)
Impairment: RAE
At 1 January Rn—AH—H (54) (2,690)
Reversed during the year RERED - 2,636
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (54) (54)
Carrying amount: BRENFE
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8H 86,679 130,456
Less: Current portion included in BSIABENRIE FI& &
prepayments, deposits and H A & U SR IB HY
other receivables BIHAER 7 (1,940) (1,718)
Non-current portion JEENHAER > 84,739 128,738
At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s RZE—RAF+_A=+—H K~EBET
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying BREFEL) A ARS3,263,0007T (ZZ—H
amount of approximately RMB33,263,000 (2014: & AR #33,825,0007T) T LB A E R
RMB33,825,000) were pledged to secure general HEHERERASEER —RIRTHE ZE
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of R BRACHEMEEZFHIE F2MME34 -

pledged assets, please refer to note 34.
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=1+—H

. Py
17.Intangible Assets 17. B &EE
Deferred
Computer development
software costs Total
BB B 2% B AR et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARKETTT ARBETTT
31 December 2015 —E-EF
+=A=+-8
Cost at 1 January 2015, R-ZFT—AF-A—AK
net of accumulated RS - HBR REt o
amortisation ) 5,398 91,619 97,017
Additions R 451 111,777 112,228
Amortisation provided FAEHRE
during the year (1,002) (26,878) (27,880)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—H
F+-—A=+—H 4,847 176,518 181,365
At 31 December 2015 ﬁé:%—ﬂi‘f’:ﬂ
=T—H
Cost [N 10,132 240,566 250,698
Accumulated amortisation REt#is (5,285) (64,048) (69,333)
Net carrying amount EEFE 4,847 176,518 181,365
31 December 2014 —ZE—MNF
+=—BA=+-—8
At 1 January 2014: R-_ZE—-HFE—HF—H:
Cost DN 10,197 101,708 111,905
Accumulated amortisation REr#is (3,122) (17,198) (20,320)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7,075 84,510 91,585
Cost at 1 January 2014, RZE—NHFEF—A—H/
net of accumulated ﬁJZ$ TDB?E% AT SE
amortisation 7,075 84,510 91,585
Additions R 252 27,081 27,333
Disposal BE (722) - (722)
Amortisation provided FAEHRE
during the year (1,207) (19,972) (21,179)
At 31 December 2014 R_ZE—FE
+-A=+—H 5,398 91,619 97,017
At 31 December 2014 and W =Z— L4
at 1 January 2015: +=—A=+—B8K
—T-h¥—-A—H:
Cost X $ 9,681 128,789 138,470
Accumulated amortisation RETEEH (4,283) (37,170) (41,4593
Net carrying amount REFE 5,398 91,619 97,017
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R Mz

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

18.Investments in a Joint Venture 18. A —[BEa&EbERKE AT

and Associates ZIRE
Investment in a joint venture REELENRE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Share of net assets EREEFE 18,092 11,807
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: BEPERNFEET:

Percentage of

Place of ARl
Particulars of registration ownership Voting Profit

Name issued shares held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
£8 FREERTROFE IRREERY EERER RRE B TEEHR
Leoch Accupower (m) Ordinary shares of Malaysia 51% 50% 51%  Manufacture and sale of

Sdn.Bhd.* RM1 each lead-acid batteries
Leoch Accupower (m) SRABISIMLTAR SRAS BEREENBET Y

Sdn.Bhd.*
The Group’s trade receivable balances due from the AEEEKZE S ENE FRIEIEERR
joint venture are disclosed in note 23 to the financial B 5 ¥R 2% I 5 T34 55 ©
statements.
The Group’s shareholding in the joint venture is held REBERZEELENREZRBARFNS
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. BB ARIER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMis:

31 December 2015
—FT-hF+=ZA=+—H

18.Investments in a Joint Venture 18.JA— F'En EEPEREENT

and Associates (continued) 215 E ( F=
Investment in a joint venture (continued) REELENRE (&)
The following table illustrates the financial information of TRAPZEEDENMBER:

the joint venture:

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZE—E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETRT

Share of the joint venture's loss for the year JE{G & & (> ¥ F N EE (7,720) (4,330)
Share of the joint venture’s total BliEeEtEFANEE

comprehensive loss for the year ETE AR (7,720) (4,330)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRELLENTEDN

investment in the joint venture BRTEE 18,092 11,807
Investment in associates REBEQRINRE

2015 2014
—F-RF —TWF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Share of net assets L EEFE 3,806 4,073
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31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

Investment in associates (continued)

18.Investments in a Joint Venture
and Associates (continued)

Particulars of associates are as follows:

LRE (&

BrE ARIRFFBAN T

18. A —BEaEbERKE AT

REBERTNRE (&)

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable to
Name issued shares held and business the Group Principal activities
rEERNG
R/ & FrERER
= FRERITROFE BN BAk IEER
MSB Manufacturing Ordinary shares of Malaysia 40% Manufacture and sale of
Sdn.Bhd. RM1 each lead-acid batteries
MSB Manufacturing BREEIETH BRAD 40%  BUERHENRES)
Sdn.Bhd. gl
Master Electronics Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 35% Manufacture and sale of
Group Limited* US$1 each lead-acid batteries
Master Electronics FREEBIELH B 3% EERFHENRES)
Group Limited* TR
* Master Electronics Group Limited was disposed of in year * Master Electronics Group LimitedB R =%
2015. —REHE-

AREE R —HBE R RINE SRS
BRI B 75 SR P RE 239 R

The Group’s trade receivable balances due from an
associate are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.

AEBRZEE AR ERARAINE
BB ARRE-

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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31 December 2015

19.

—RFF=A=+—H

18.

Investments in a Joint Venture
and Associates (continued)

ZRE (&)

18. R—BEEREK

g A\ E_l

]H]]

Investment in associates (continued) REERRNRE ()
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TREMEE ARSI AR :
information of the associates:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Share of an associate’s profit for the year — FE{G B4 A &) A % Fl 368 436
Share of an associate’s total BB AR 2 E KA LR
comprehensive income for the year 368 436
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’'s ANEBREE R AIRE 2
investments in the associates R4 %8 3,806 4,073
Available-for-sale Investment 19. A HHEKRE
2015 2014
—E-8F —T—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®EF T
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FELEMRARE HAAEE 54,257 23,346

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investment recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB27,662,000 —F—
(2014: RMB2,346,000).

The above equity investment which was designated as i
available-for-sale financial asset has no fixed maturity
date or coupon rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R M

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

20.PTEEMIA

20.Derivative Financial Instruments

2015 2014

S —FEF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥Tn AREFTT ARETT
Warrants RIRIEE - - - 5,365
Forward currency contracts &= EE A4 4,290 56,397 6,575 38,206
4,290 56,397 6,575 43,571

Warrants AR REE

On 7 May 2014, the Company issued 46,000,000
warrants with a net consideration of approximately
RMB277,000 to certain independent third parties to
subscribe for the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each. The subscription rights attaching to 50% of these
warrants may be exercised at any time during a period
of 12 months commencing from 8 May 2014 with an
exercise price of HK$1.2 per share. The subscription
rights attaching to the remaining 50% of these warrants
may be exercised at any time during a period of 18
months commencing from 8 May 2014 with an exercise
price of HK$1.6 per share. As the exercise price of
these warrants are denominated in HK$ which is not
the functional currency of the Company, these warrants
are accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

RZZE—NFERALH  AARAETEILE
= 7 81746,000,000(7 Al REEA R R AL EE
OB LA L AR AR IERE - REFBN A
AR HE277,0007T © 5% 5 7R AR 75 B950%BE Fff
WRBETAE - -ERAN\BEH2
8 A EAREIBERS 7 T - TR B A ER1.28 T

25 R AR AE R £ T 50%ME KT B SR EEHE AT AR FR
—ZT—F A AN\ BRH8E A B EERT
- 1TEB AT 68T - ARZSRIAEE
BITEEUAER AR M 2 BTt E -

ZERBREZARIESRBBILIRAAE
BEEE:TABRTE-
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

20.Derivative Financial Instruments 20.0T4€m T H (&

184

(continued)
Warrants (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
subscription rights attaching to 11,500,000 warrants
and 1,500,000 warrants were exercised on 10 July
2014 and 17 July 2014, respectively, at the exercise
price of HK$1.2 per share, resulting in the issue of
totalling 13,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a net
cash consideration of approximately RMB12,032,000.
Upon the exercise of these warrants, the amount of
the share capital increased by RMB1,031,000 and a
fair value loss of RMB7,259,000 was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014.

At 31 December 2014, the Company had
33,000,000 warrants outstanding with a total fair
value of RMB5,365,000. The change in fair value of
RMB5,088,000 was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014,

In the current year, the subscription rights attaching to
23,000,000 warrants and 10,000,000 warrants expired
on 6 November 2015 and 6 May 2015, respectively.
Upon the expiration of these warrants, a total fair
value gain of RMB5,365,000 was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the current year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMisE

31 December 2015
—E—hAF+=-A=+—H

20.Derivative Financial Instruments 20.$T4€m T H (&
(continued)

Forward currency contracts ZHEBEN
The Group has entered into various forward currency AEECIZNEREBEHNNUNERE
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. SNERR - ZFRIEESOVIEANEESE
These forward currency contracts are measured BERTE-FRN BHREEKEHNAAEE
at fair value through profit or loss. The net loss, LHNFER(REEERRREREBEF
including realised and unrealised, on changes in the #) AR¥31,315,0007T (=T —F : AR
fair value of the forward currency contracts amounting 32,534,0007T) EREm K ER - BHERPE
to RMB31,315,000 (2014: RMB32,534,000) was AR —FAEE-
recognised in the statement of profit or loss during
the year. The maturity dates of the derivative financial
instruments are within one year.
21.Inventories 21. 78
2015 2014
—E-IOfF —E-lF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Raw materials R 193,366 91,419
Work in progress 8 450,284 443,315
Finished goods BUAY 2, 245,377 261,334

889,027 796,068

BELEBRRWERAR | — T HFFR 185



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

22.Completed Properties Held for 22 33 ESEEE R E

Sale

2015 2014
—E-IfF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Completed properties held for sale BIERFSE BN 31,984 -
In 2014, Jiangsu Siting, a subsidiary of the Company, R-E—NF ARAK B AR & EEE
entered into an arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with —REsEy ([E%H]) (—BBIE=7)
a constructor (the “Constructor’), an independent AN —IELHE ([&ZHE ) BER—IBEEWHEER
third party, to develop a residential property project B BEETRRETIES ([ZERB]) &
for including but not limited to staff quarters (the LHEBEZEEMNEELME UEKRER
“Project”). The Constructor is responsible for the TERKEIHE M - BIFLHE  TERBEREE
management and funding of the Project and sale of the B2BEERI B Taio il BE 1%
properties after they are completed. There are certain BIEBRBE TYESE - BIELHE - 1BER

profit sharing arrangements between Jiangsu Siting and MEAKHR — BB E = FIELER.

the Constructor in accordance with the Arrangement,
including that Jiangsu Siting will retain certain units of
the properties. The performance of the Constructor
under the Arrangement will be guaranteed by an
independent third party.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of RZE—RF+ZA=+—H -ZEBHET
the properties under development and the completed BB RPN E R FEFE AR ENRE
properties held for sale under the Project were En Bl A& A R ¥45,050,0007T (M 7E15) A
RMB45,050,000 (note 15) and RMB31,984,000, R #31,984,0007T °

respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BfiRIRHIEE

23.Trade and Bills Receivables

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

23. BEZ R HEREREE

2015 2014

—E—REF —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREFIT

Trade receivables 2 5 WA 1,540,426 1,281,593
Bills receivable FE U =R 24,601 91,578
Less: Impairment provision R E A (16,156) (14,909)
1,548,871 1,358,262

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit period of individual customers is considered
on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers are
required to make partial payment before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB174,846,000 (2014: RMB161,858,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB64,277,000
(2014: RMB62,798,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB78,271,000
(2014: RMB34,126,000) to banks with recourse in
exchange for cash (note 34). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB38,477,000
(2014: RMB11,208,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 41 to the
financial statements.

AEBEREFETFTTITRANGEEH SEE
FREENE BT - ATERFAEARRNE
AT R EH DR e REESKEH
REBENRU GBS BESE T
PERZEERER WRAEKEERR SRE
BEeTrTHEEaBRNNES®R EFHEK
FRIEF A R#174,846,0007T ( —Z — P04
AR 161,858,0007T) 7] A 2 8 {5 FA IR B
i AR #64,277,0007C (ZF—MF : ARKE
62,798,0007T) RIFTBE A& o ol - A B
B S AR R RS EAE
BiRAEE - BB EBGIEAET B -

W-_Z—hE+-_A=+—80 ~£EEHIR
TERETHEERENE SRR ¢85
RARET8271,0007T (ZE—MF: AR
34,126,0007T)  #E LA EVIR & (MI5E34) - 3K
HE 5 RUGRIAFS B AR #38,477,0007T

— T U AR¥E11,208,0007T) JHFIVER
EIRRITREN EEZEE HRUGIARE
Bl A E BB IRITEENEMBEAL-
ER(RIZE 5N IEMNF BER I RE
A

BErEBRMERAA | —FT-AFFR

187



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMisE

31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

23.Trade and Bills Receivables 23.E S EINFHIER BWRERE
(continued) (#&)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as RZE—RAFERZF-—WOF+=-_HA=1+—H

at 31 December 2015 and 2014 based on the invoice 2ESEWE IE&JEHSZKTFBZ?%T (0F

date, net of provisions, is as follows: B MR DTN T -
2015 2014
—E—-1F —E-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBFIT
Within 3 months 3@ AN 1,174,933 1,029,556
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 239,221 171,361
6 to 12 months 62121E A 89,764 115,437
1 to 2 years 1ZE24F 34,703 33,087
Over 2 years 2FEPA F 10,250 8,821
1,548,871 1,358,262

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

B PR FIRR ER RN EFESIIT

2015 2014

—ZE—-EHF —mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®F T

At 1 January w—A—8 14,909 13,284
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) MERREEE (MiFE6) 1,247 1,625
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 16,156 14,909
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23.Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB16,156,000 (2014:
RMB14,909,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB19,156,000 (2014: RMB14,909,000).

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
relates to individual customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivable is
expected to be recovered.

The bills receivable are due to mature within one year
from 31 December 2015.

An analysis of trade and bills receivables that were not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

23. 8 5 FE WA R BB R R 15

(#&

FFALILE 5 REBGIARRE R # AL E
RIE B E 5 FE kI8 A K #16,156,000
T (ZZF—WMF : AR ¥14,909,0007T ) 7
REOBE EXMELEBEINEREREAA
R#19,156,0007T (ZE —MF: AR
14,909,0007T ) °

il B 5 WG IB KR E R AR B R &
BRI~ B &I HAE ] Uk Bl &6 5 FE WGR
Ho

URENR _T-AF+-A=t—Bis
—FREH-

R AL BRI SRR BN E 5 R
KRR ST

2015 2014

—E-RF —E-EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREFIT

Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR R IBE 1,503,918 1,316,354
Past due but not impaired B EME RRE 41,953 41,908
1,545,871 1,358,262

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers that
have not had a history of default recently.

REHTRRBE R BUGRIR B 2 2 T B2
HEBNEFER-
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

23.Trade and Bills Receivables 3. EFREWNAREREREZE
(continued) (#&

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BB ERBREMN ERFIR T E % A BHARE
to a number of independent customers that have a EERFNRTECENB LR BEHE A
good payment track record with the Group. Based REFHNEESRWEENE ) RERITE
on past experience, the directors believe that no REBAIATRKE  REATLS EFRA
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these WHENERZ S ERIELRERE-
balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality of the customers and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable are amounts AEEBZRUGIEDERKASESED
due from the Group's joint venture and an associate of E REE N RIREIE - 95l A AR 2,440,000
RMB2,440,000 (2014: RMB11,266,000) and nil (2014: 7T (= Z— 4 A R#11,266,0007T) R E
RMB1,085,000), respectively, which are repayable (ZZ—MF : AR¥E1,085,0007T) * 5% E70A
on credit terms similar to those offered to the major ARAAEE T ERFREERUNEES

customers of the Group. Big -
24 .Prepayments, Deposits and 24 FENRIE FIE R HMEW
. =+
Other Receivables I
2015 2014
—®2-H1Ff —F0OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®T T
Prepayments AT KIB 77,458 44,997
Deposits and other receivables & R EAME U FRIE 29,242 12,057
Loans to employees mEEEH® 6,459 5,597
Interest receivables JE WL B 3,986 2,035
Current portion of prepaid land TERT AR E IR R BN ERER
lease payments 1,940 1,718
119,085 66,404
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24.Prepayments, Deposits and 24.
Other Receivables (continued)

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

25.Equity Investments at Fair Value 25.
Through Profit or Loss

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

iﬁﬁ?\i{?\ EE R HEAMEWR
RIE (48

AR R R . i R
By % BE E BRAT ERE KD SRR M B R

D[ABEEZBTABRRZE
mHERE

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —T—MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Listed equity investments, at market value iR MEIRE

22,543 -

The above equity investments at 31 December 2015
were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

FRR —E-RE+ - A=+—B RN
BEDHEARFERE  RRVITHERE B
SEETEAABEEZDT ABENESRE
o
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

26.Cash and Bank Balances and

2&E$&ﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁi%ﬁ

Time Deposits GHN

2015 2014
—E-hF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®T T
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTH &R 207,618 138,907
Time deposits TEHATE R 580,401 622,514
788,019 761,421

Less: Pledged for interest-bearing B BERET RRITIEEE
bank borrowings (174,096) (887,767)
Pledged for bills payable BBt R R (322,125) (232,332)
Pledged for letters of credit E s AEE T (84,180) (2,415)
(580,401) (622,514)
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEHFEY 207,618 138,907
Denominated in RMB AR E 646,815 704,635
Denominated in US$ UNETTEHE 86,334 41,054
Denominated in HK$ LA TTETE 48,731 8,573
Denominated in European Dollar (‘EUR”)  UABT ([T ) 5HE 1,442 1,116
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee AT RE LT E 272 4,447
Denominated in Singapore Dollar (‘SG$”)  AFTAI% T ([Fdng ) sHE 1,286 1,596
Denominated in Australia Dollar LURITEHE 537 -
Denominated in Indian Rupee LAENE B EHE 2,602 -
788,019 761,421
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26.Cash and Bank Balances and

27 .

Time Deposits (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposit
are made for varying period of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

26. H & RIRITHEERUREHRF

o (E

ARG B B LRIEINE - 28T - RIET B
SNEE GRS A5 TE ~ ETE R ASTEE B IRARE -
AR BB B IRAERITIF AR H e
SNEELAHETTONE 5765

FRIFITHIR SRS BRI R ZE)
BRRBAN S -EHRERERHBE—BE
=“EANE AT AKEZERRSERM
E & BIREEIT SN R B - RITHEER
EEREREFALHBHERCHEAEER
EFEVERTT

Trade and Bills Payables 21. B ENREBERENEE
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZE—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETRT
Trade payables P MR 335,918 355,785
Bills payable e =% 884,173 860,605
1,220,091 1,216,390
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

27.Trade and Bills Payables

(continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

.%%Eﬁﬂ

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMsE

BRENREE

&)

RE R BB RNFRALENRIRRE

S
=EHNERA T

2015 2014

—E-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Within 3 months 3@ AR 315,294 300,543
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 719,905 850,119
6 to 12 months 621218 A 174,821 29,423
1 to 2 years 1ZE24F 2,791 31,225
2 to 3 years 2E3F 2,809 3,752
Over 3 years BiB3F 4,471 1,328
1,220,091 1,216,390

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 180 days. As
at 31 December 2015, bills payable amounting to
RMB837,944,000 (2014: RMB850,800,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s bills
payables were secured by pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB322,125,000
(2014: RMB232,332,000) (note 34).
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F+ZA=+—B FAEEREEANRQRIE#
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NEE - BZSERAR FRITIERHRE -
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28.0ther Payables and Accruals

31 December 2015

—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

28. HENRIEN BT EH

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—-MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Provision for social insurance and e R KR IRAE B B

retirement benefits 128,704 128,697
Advances from customers BEAMNR 55,755 82,105
Accrued expenses JEETF X 53,754 37,582
Accrued payroll JEET T & 34,647 34,134

Payables for purchase of items of WEWME -BWELEZEEED
property, plant and equipment FET5RIR 10,442 35,848
Provision for product warranties EmRESEE 10,069 8,373
Others Hi 33,887 33,434
327,258 360,173
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31 December 2015
—FT-hF+=ZAR=+—H

. a 4= JH
29.Interest-Bearing Bank 20. 5T EIR1TIEE
Borrowings
2015 2014
—E-RF i3
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRAE BB E
(%) A8 ARTR (%) HH ARETT
Current B
Interest-bearing bank FEBRAEE BER LIBOR On demand
borrowings, guaranteed +3.00 REX 544,240 - - -
Interest-bearing bank FERAEE BEA 1.50 to 7.53 1.95107.80
borrowings, secured 1.50£7.53 2016 888,326  1.95%7.80 2015 1,128,289
Collateralised bank advances, ~ B#EFRITLF FHEM 2.00 to 3.50 3.44105.03
secured 2.00£3.50 2016 38,477 3.44%5.03 2015 11,208
1,471,043 1,139,497
Non-current FEE
Interest-bearing bank HERITIEE BEA
borrowings, secured 2017-2028 84,848 2017-2028 62,173
1,555,891 1,201,670
Denominated in RVMB AR E 804,958 811,893
Denominated in US$ UETEHE 579,043 277,737
Denominated in HK$ WETTEHE 153,387 91,704
Denominated in SG$ VAT IS e EHE 18,503 20,336
1,555,891 1,201,670
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

29.Interest-Bearing Bank 29.3T RIRITEE (&)
Borrowings (continued)

Analysed into: AT
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZE—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT
Bank loans and advances repayable: HEEBNRITERRBR:
On demand BREK 544,240 -
Within one year —FRw 926,803 1,139,497
In the second year B4 37,767 19,722
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-FEFRF
BREEEMF 32,533 7,889
Beyond five years hF& 14,548 34,562
1,555,891 1,201,670
The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the REERRITEE A TS s ERVEHIT :
following pledge or guarantees:
()  Pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of ) BMRITEEAREEHAEBEARE
RMB1,208,881,000 (2014: RMB1,226,539,000) 1,208,881,0007T (ZE —HF : ARME
for the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 34. 1,226,539,0007T ) (B EERRER (7

B E34EE ) ©

(i)  Cross guarantees executed by companies within i AEEAREEFTWHEEER-
the Group.
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31 December 2015
—E-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

29.Interest-Bearing Bank 20.5TRIRITEE (&

198

Borrowings (continued)

The Group entered into a three-year term loan facility
agreement amounting to US$58,000,000 on 21
September 2015 (the “Facility Agreement”) with
certain financial institutions (the “Lenders”). The total
amount of the Facility Agreement was increased to
US$85,700,000 on 24 September 2015.

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations that Mr. Dong Li, who is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, shall not cease
to own, directly or indirectly, of at least 51% of the
beneficial interest in the Company, carrying at least
51% of the voting right, free from any security. Mr. Dong
Li shall not cease to have management control over
the Company. Mr. Dong Li shall not crease to be the
Chairman of the board of directors of the Company.
At the date of approval of these audited consolidated
financial statements, such obligations have been
complied with.

Four of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited, Leoch
Battery Company Limited, Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. and
Leoch International Sales Limited were parties who act
as guarantors, to guarantee punctual performance of
the obligations under the Facility Agreement.
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TH=FHEFRE G ((REHR]) -F
EMENEeERN_S—HaFLA-1+HA
1215 £85,700,000% 7T °

RERE RS BRTRORM BEFLEE
(BARARREBBR) MERIEEA (B
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29.Interest-Bearing Bank

Borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had fully utilised
the amount of US$85,700,000 under the Facility
Agreement. As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding
term loan balance amounted to RMB544,240,000,
of which, RMB54,424,000 and RMB489,816,000 are
repayable within 1 year and in the 2nd to 3rd years
inclusive, respectively. The term loan bears interest at
LIBOR + 3% per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, one of the financial
covenants under the Facility Agreement was not
satisfied. According to the relevant accounting
standard, the long term portion of RMB489,816,000
of the term loan under the Facility Agreement, was
classified as a current liability as at 31 December 2015.

Prior to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Group had applied for and the Lenders
of the Facility Agreement had granted to the Group
waivers from strict compliance with the said financial
covenant.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

2.5t ER1TIEE (&

W_E—AF+-A=+—8 AEESERH
B) A B0 & 1755 T T~ AY5KIE85,700,000E 7T ° 1Y
TR+ -A=t+—H XEEEHE
EsR B AREES44,240,00000 R ARES
54,424,0007T, }2 A R #489,816,0007T 7 5l 72
R—FARFE-_Z=FRN (BIEEREMTF)E
% - A HIE FURLBOR + 3%H)FEF R 8 o

R_ZE—RAF+_A=+—8 mEWH#E
TH—IHERMBAKREK BEEHEGE
Al R=Z—RF+=-A=+—8H sEHz
HTNAHEFHN RIS AK%489,816,000
THOBERAEAG

RYOE IS TR B IR A EEE B AT
BRE RN AR EE R S BRI
F LS MEL -
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31 December 2015
—FT-hF+=ZAR=+—H

30.Deferred Tax 30. IEIEFH IE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities TERAFNELEHREEERBENERIER
during the year are as follows:

N S
Deferred tax assets EEBRIBEE
Depreciation
and Equipment
Provision for impairment invested in
impairment of property, subsidiaries Unpaid  Provision for
of trade plant and with revalued Unused payrolland  impairment of Unrealised
receivables equipment Tax losses amount tax credit accruals inventories profit Total
% BER SEEERY
E5BURE RENE RERKE ABA ARIER
BERE RAE HEkR NEANRE HEES EHER FHAERE FERER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ANEBTFT ARETR ARBFT ANRBFT NS ARETR ARBFT N S

Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-ME-A-8H

1 January 2014 ERERBEAEAE 1,119 7466 24,544 6,007 1,338 9956 6,198 8916 65,544
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRIA/ (MBE)BERY

the statement of profit or loss BRI

during the year 226 77 3176 (356) - (3.952) (5,773 185 6,777)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-MF+-A=+-AR

31 December 2014 and “2-R%5-A-AH

1 January 2015 ERRBEESE 1,345 8,183 21,720 5,651 1,338 6,004 425 9,101 59,767
Deferred tax credite(charged) to FRA/ (MBE)BERY

the statement of proft or loss EREHA

during the year M (1,300) 076) 72 - (3487) 29) 5530 (4,168)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-RF+-A=1-8H

31 December 2015 EREREAEAE 1649 6,883 23,644 4989 1338 2517 - 14,631 55,601
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

30.Deferred Tax (continued) 0. EERIE (&
Deferred tax liabilities EEREER
Change
in fair
value of
Capitalised available-
interest for-sale
expense investment Others Total
e
BEXRLH RENDA
AEMX BEZD Hit et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT AR®T:R

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 7 ZZ— M4

1 January 2014 —A—HB&
EREHIBAERE 11,633 - 914 12,547

Deferred tax charged to FRMREBRERE

the statement of profit or BRI

loss during the year 258 - 426 684
Deferred tax charged to FAMKRBEEM

other comprehensive FHEHKER

income during the year EERIE - 352 - 352

Gross deferred tax liabilities ~ R Z=Z—P04
at 31 December 2014 and +ZA=+—-HB8kK

1 January 2015 —ET-hF
—A—HH
ERERIERERE 11,891 352 1,340 13,583
Deferred tax credited to FRFABRERN
the statement of profit or EETIE
loss during the year (1,383) - (420) (1,8093)
Deferred tax charged to FRMkREEHAM
other comprehensive FE W
income during the year BRI - 4,149 - 4,149

Gross deferred tax liabilities at RN —ZT— A
31 December 2015 +ZA=+—848
RIEHIEEERE 10,508 4,501 920 15,929
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZA=+—H

30.Deferred Tax (continued)

30. IEFERLIE (45 )

202

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB40,765,000 (2014: RMB29,165,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2015 and
2014. As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB151,007,000 (2014:
RMB59,912,000).
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

31.Share Capital 31. ]
Shares % 2
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—F
Authorised: ARTE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,0%0,%){%800%5_ “
, i AE T
HKS0.1 each (HKS'000) EEAR (T 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR:
1,353,319,666 (2014: 1,352,087,000) 1,3<5§,%1 91%6225?
ordmyary shares of HK$0.1 each 1.352.087,0000% )
(HK$'000) R EEO. B TTHY
Tk (FA81T) 135,332 135,209
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARBTT 115,843 115,742
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31 December 2015
—FT-hF+=ZAR=+—H

31.Share Capital (continued)
Shares (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share
capital is as follows:

31. R~ (&

R4 (&)

FRARERAEE BRI T -

Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
28T
BHEE &N
Notes RMB’000
BT AREFIT
At 1 January 2014 RZTE—MNFE—H—H 1,337,075,000 114,551
Exercise of the warrants TR R T 20 13,000,000 1,031
Exercise of the share options 1T B I i (i) 2,012,000 160
At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—MF
+=ZA=+—8H 1,352,087,000 115,742
At 31 December 2014 and R—ZE—UF
1 January 2015 +=ZA=+—HK
—E—hF%—H—H 1,352,087,000 115,742
Exercise of the share options 1T I A i (i) 1,232,666 101
At 31 December 2015 R_Z—RF
+=-A=+—H 1,353,319,666 115,843
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31.Share Capital (continued)
Shares (continued)

()  The subscription rights attaching to 2,012,000
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.20 to HK$1.20 per
share, resulting in the issue of 2,012,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB1,254,000. An amount
of RMB1,410,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

(i)  The subscription rights attaching to 1,232,666
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.40 to HK$0.90 per
share, resulting in the issue of 1,232,666 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB451,000. An amount
of RMB587,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the

share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 32 to the financial statements.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-RA=+—H

31. A& (&
G (&)

) 2012,000tn EEARIEREMT M REERE D 10T
B20.2078 7L =1 208 LR REE (B T - B
BrE%172,012,0000% & A E{EO. 1078 TTHY
B RMBHASZNEReREAAR
#51,254,0007T - FE IR I TR 18- AR
#£1,410,0007C B B BB AR R B B = AR
DmERRA -

@ 1,232,606 8B AAERE T HRIBE D IR T
B20.4078 7T E0.90/8 T HIRIE B T - &
BEE171,232,6660% B A% E E0.108 7T &)
By AMNMBHAIHBRRERELAR
#451,0007T - BRI IET T 18 - AR
587,0007C B B B IR iE R BB R E R H
S ERRA

B

AR Bl RAR IR AT 8131 T 2 B I
12 ITH N MR FES2
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 32. IR &l

206

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less
than the nominal value of the shares.
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32.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and
options which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 32. T2l (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHRENERESTS
(continued) (#&)
The following share options were outstanding under the N TREFANERAREESAERETEIRET
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year: ) AR T8 Y R AR A -
2015 2014
—E-0F —T-EF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
REF 1 nEFH
TEE BREZEA IE EREHE
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share ’000
SRET T4 FRAT )
At 1 January m—A—H 1.58 25,507 1.46 30,654
Exercised during the year FREN 0.40 (1,100) 0.54 (1,646)
Forfeited during the year FRITHE 1.24 (1,135) 0.95 (3,501)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 1.66 23,272 1.58 25,507
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s RABROREAITERBREE B ey inEFE
shares at dates on which the options were exercised HmHEAERIOVET (Z2—NE 8K
during the year was HK$1.01 per share (2014: 1.617%870) °

HK$1.61 per share).
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

32.fE xRt &l (&)

32.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

BRAABENBRES
(&)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Movements in the Company’s share options under the FARNBERNARESHERETSZIET

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as BB FEnT -
follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Name or category SREERA At1 January Exercised Forfeited  At31December  Dateofgrant  Exercise period Exercise price
of participant #EGER 2015  during the year  during the year 2015  of share options  of share options of share options
RZZ-1F WZB-1%
-B-B ERTR EREN  tZAZT-B BRERHMER BRECRS RRETEE
HKS per share
BiRET
Directors j £
Ms. Zhao Huan HELT 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June 2010 1June 2012to 14
1 June 2022
ZE-%F  ZE-Z%5A-HE
~A-R ZEIZFRA-H
Mr. Phiip Armstrong Noznesky  Philip Ammstrong Noznesky % 4 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June2010 1 June 2012 to 20
1 June 2022
“2-%F  ZT-CExA-BZE
~A-B ZEIZFRA-B
3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Other employees HiES 22,507,000 (1,100,000) (1,135,000) 20,272,000 1June 2010 14 October 2011 to 02-50
in aggregate 1 June 2022
“%-%F ZE-—FTATEAZ
~A-R ZBIZERA-H
25,507,000 (1,100,000) (1,135,000) 23,272,000
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

32.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Pre-IPO
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2015 are

2. BIRERTE (&)

BX AR ER B R E S
(%)
R-T—HE+-A=+—AMKTENE

as follows:
Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TS
13,250 HK$0.27% 7t 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E— XA BEZE-__F,"A—H
13,250 HKS$0.2/8 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
TE—=FEXA—BEZE-__FA—
51,250 HK$0.27% 7t 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—UEAA-—BE-T-__FH—H
198,250 HK$0.27% 7t 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-hAERNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
20,000 HKS$0.4% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
TE——HXNA—BEZZE-__F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.47 7t 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
ZE—=FRA—HEZZEZZFA—
20,000 HK$0.47% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E—NEXNA—HBHEZZ__FXA
120,000 HKS$0.4% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E—hAFERNA—BEZE-_F~AH
190,000 HK$0.67 7t 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-——HFRNA—BEE-__FHA—
205,000 HK$0.67% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E—=FAA—HEZZT=-_F,A—H
205,000 HK$0.678 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
@ﬁ/\ﬂ EK—Q——QE/\H El
205,000 HK$0.67 7t 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RAFEANA—BEZE-__F,A—H
410,750 HK$0.87% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—8H

2. BIRERTE (&)

32.Share Option Schemes

(continueqd)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHBRENERESTS
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRTEE TS
410,750 HK$0.87% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—=FXNA—HE-_ZTZ-_—_FA—H
410,750 HK$0.87 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E—NMERNA—BEZE-__FA—
410,750 HK$0.87 7t 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-hAFANA—BEZE=-__FH
868,750 HK$1.07% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-——HXNA—HBEZZE-__F,XH
968,750 HK$1.0% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—= —E'E/\)EJ ElK— __fﬁ/\ﬂ El
969,250 HK$1.07 7t 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
P;EIE'E/\H Ej:—?——ﬁz/\ﬂ El
981,250 HK$1.07% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-hHERNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
402,500 HK$1.2/8 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-——HFARNA—BEE-__FA—
402,500 HK$1.278 7t 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E-=FRA—BEZZE=__FH
427,500 HK$1.27%8 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NMERNA—BEZZE-__F,XA—H
427,500 HK$1.2/8 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—HAERNA—HE_ZE-__HFXA—
830,000 HK$1.47 7t 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
——F#NA—HE-_ZT-__F,A—H
830,000 HK$1.47%8 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E—=FXRA—HEZZT-_—_F,XA—H
830,000 HK$1.47%8 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NMERNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
830,000 HK$1.47 7t 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-hAFANA—BEZE-__FHA—
555,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

—E-——HXNA—HBEZE-__FXAH
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

32.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

Exercise price

2. BIRERTE (&)

ERAA K
(&)

ERERESS

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TS
555,000 HK$1.675 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
=FAXA—BEZT_FH—H
555,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
“E—NMENA—BE_ZE-__FA—
555,000 HK$1.678 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-hAFANA—BEZE-__FHA—
882,500 HK$1.87% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-CZFARA—HBEZZT_FH—H
882,500 HK$1.87% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
TE—=FEXA—BEZE_-__F,HA—H
882,500 HK$1.87 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NFERA-BEZT-__FHA—H
882,500 HK$1.87% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—E-RFAA—BEZZT=-=_FXA—H
1,087,500 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E-—HFANA—BEE-__F~A—
1,087,500 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022
—E-=FRA—BEZE=-_FH
1,087,500 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022
—E-NMERNA—BEZZE__FA—H
1,087,500 HK$2.07% 7T 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022
—RAFEANA—HBE_ZE-__%,xA—H
500,000 HK$5.07% 7t 14 Ootober 2011 to 14 October 2021
—E——F+AtTmNAE—_ZE-_—F+A+MHHAH
500,000 HK$5.07% 7T 14 October 2012 to 14 October 2021
T —F+A+mNBE-_T-_—Ft+HA+mWmA
500,000 HK$5.07% 7T 14 October 2013 to 14 October 2021
=+ AtTHmEE=ZTE=—F+A+mWmA
23,272,000
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32.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

The 1,100,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 1,100,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$110,000
(equivalent to RMB91,000) and share premium of
HK$1,080,000 (equivalent to RMB853,000).

At 31 December 2015, the Company had outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options for the subscription of
23,272,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.7% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 23,272,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$2,327,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,950,000) and share premium of HK$36,304,000
(equivalent to RMB30,369,000), before related issuance
expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 23,272,000 share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.7% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

2.l EsTE (&)

(ﬁ)ﬂ’&ﬁﬁ?&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%
-]

N—

F N 1T1#1,100,00017 B8 A% 7 B B3 17
1,100,000/ 2 & & 3R A% K2 ¥85 Mg 28 110,000
Bt (HHE RN A R%91,0007T) &R D E
1,080,000/ 7T (1EE M AR #853,0007T) °

R_E—AF+-A=+—8 ARREEX
TEER AR EREAE  ATREE AR
= BB ACAE AT 8118 123,272,0008 0% 175 #8
ERADBNE BNBBITRAL1.7% 1R
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BRAFEEREARES G B E1723,272,000
R AR BIREINE BT - A R EEIMNR AR
2,327,000/ 7T, (#8554 A R #1,950,0007T )
Ko A% 47 %5 836,304,000/ 7T (FHE N AR
30,369,0007T) (BB THZAT)
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 32. MM ERTE (&)

214

(continued)
Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible persons for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group
and for such other purposes as the board of directors
may approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the
Scheme include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the Group
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors, has
contributed to or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme is available to the directors
and employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.
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32.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting and certain disclosure and
reporting requirements.

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.

The Scheme became effective on 16 November 2010,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme by shareholders by resolution at a general
meeting.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may be
specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 December 2015
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

. e | A__ E
32.Share Option Schemes 32. T2l (&)
(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued) BRESTE (F)
The following share options were outstanding under the AT RFERBIREST T8 T8 @ RTTERER
Share Option Scheme during the year: -
2015 2014
—E-E&E —T-|mF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEEY T
TfEE BREHE 1B BREHE
HK$ HKS
per share ’000 per share '000
ERERT T4 SRET T3
At 1 January w—A—H 1.82 21,484 1.82 21,040
Granted during the year FREL 0.97 5,900 1.81 1,900
Exercised during the year FHTE 0.90 (133) 0.87 (366)
Forfeited during the year FRRK 1.39 (5,531) 1.98 (1,000)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 1.7 21,720 1.82 21,484
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s RABROREAITERBREE B ey inEFE
shares at dates on which the options were exercised HmHEAERIOVET (Z2—NE 8K
during the year was HK$1.01 per share (2014: 1.617%870) °

HK$1.61 per share).
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 32. MM fERTE (&)
(continued)

- - Y e
Share Option Scheme (continued) BREE (F)
Movements in the Company’s share options under FRARRIBIRERT 2118 T EARE 2 2 BN
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows: T
Number of share options
At 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ At 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
2015  during the year  during the year  during the year 2015 of share options of share options of share options
Name or category ~ $R&HE  R-F-I1F W=E-1f%
of participant £5 -B-B FRR ERfTfE FRRK  TZAZT-B  BRERLAE BREGRED BREGRE
HKS per share
BT
Directors iz
Mr. Cao Yidong Alan BRI 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 10 239
22 November 2016
e o s = I S - Bl = -
SE-RET-AZTCIR
Mr. Liu Yangsheng AEEsE 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 10 239
22 November 2016
“§——%t-A-t-B -EF-§f-B-RZ
“F-ET-A-tzR
600,000 - - - 600,000
Otheremployees ~ HftES R 11,550,000 - - (1,430,000) 10,120,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 10 239
in aggregate 22 November 2016

SB—Ht-fztzA ZR-CEPIA-RE
ZE-REt-ACTIH
7,434,000 - (132,666) (2,601,334) 4700000 20 November 2013 11 December 2014 to 090
20 November 2018
ZR-ZE-AZtR CRRETIAT-RE
“3-\Et-F=1H
600,000 - - (600,000) - 3Juy2014 15 July 2015 o 1.69
15 July 2017
“I-RELA=R “T-RELATRAZE
“5-tFtATAR
1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 21 July 2014 20 August 2015 to 186
20 August 2017
“E-BELA=T-A ZF-15N\A=TRE
ZE-LENAZTH

- 4,400,000 = (900,000) 3500000 1 Api 2015 1 Apil 2016 to 102
1 Apri 2020
“Z-REMA-A “E-REMA-AE
“Z-%5mA-A
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 26 November 2015 26 November 2015 to 081

26 November 2019
“F-REt-fotRE ZE-IET-AotARE
ZE-hEt-BZ1iA

20,884,000 5,900,000 (132,666) (5,531,334) 21,120,000

21,484,000 5,900,000 (132,666) (5,531,334) 21,720,000
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31 December 2015
ZE-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 32. MM fERTE (&)

(continued)

BRERTE (&)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

R-E-—RFE+_A=+—BRKRITENE
PR TTE(E A TE RN T -

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2015 are as
follows:

Exercise price

218

Number of options per share Exercise period

BREZE BRITEE T

10,720,000 HK$2.397% 7T 1 December 2012 to 22 November 2016
T+ ZRA—HEZZE—R"F+—A=+=H

4,700,000 HK$0.907% 7T 11 December 2014 to 20 November 2018
—ENF+_A+—BE_ZE-N\F+—-H=Z+H

1,300,000 HK$1.86/%5 T 20 August 2015 to 20 August 2017
“E-RAFNAZ+HRE_ZE—+FNHZ=-TH

3,500,000 HK$1.025%5 7T 1 April 2016 to 1 April 2020
—E-RFNUNA—BE-_ZE-_FFMYAHA—H

1,500,000 HK$0.817 7T 26 November 2015 to 26 November 2019
—E-RFtT A+ AREZE-AF+—AZ+H

21,720,000

On 1 April 2015, 4,400,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted to 19 employees
of the Group. The fair value of these options was
HK$1,933,000 (equivalent to RMB1,531,000), of which
the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$664,000 (equivalent to RMB526,000) in the current
year.

On 26 November 2015, 1,500,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were issued to an
employee of the Group. The fair value of these options
was HK$530,000 (equivalent to RMB437,000), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$27,000 (equivalent to RMB22,000) in the current
year.
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31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

32.Share Option Schemes 2. WEMIRERTE (8)
(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued) RS (F)
The fair value of the share options granted under the RERERET SR BREN A ABER
Share Option Scheme was estimated as at the date of REBHEEEERA B EES I
grant by management, using the binomial lattice model, = R H BB IR TR AR K AR T 1T
taking into account the terms and conditions upon fhate TREIHAZIER R #E ANELR:

which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

26 November 1 April 21 July 7 July

2015 2015 2014 2014

ZB-5F —2-1 —E-mF —T-mF

Grant date R A8 T—A=tA FMA-H tA=1+—H +A+H

Exercise price (HK$ per share) IR E (BRET) 0.81 1.02 1.86 1.69

Expected dividend vield (%) TRHMR S & (% ) - - - -

Expected volatility (%) T8 H R 18 (%) 52.39 50.15 50.28 50.28

Risk-free interest rate (%) A2 (3 o2 711K (%) 1.14 1.07 1.29 1.29
Expected life of share options BHERENEH (F)

(years) 5 5 5 5
Weighted average share R A HR) N

price at grant date THRE (BRET)

(HKS per share) 0.81 1.00 1.80 1.69
The expected life of the share options is not necessarily AR TR B FHIR L A BE B E T IR
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The HNAVIEIR - FBHIR B A Y —E R ERGER
expected volatility may not necessarily reflect the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was EREBRENEMSBLEFRAARARE
incorporated into the measurement of fair value. BEHWFTEA-
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=1+—H

32.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The 132,666 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 132,666 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$13,000
(equivalent to RMB10,000) and share premium of
HK$106,000 (equivalent to RMB84,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding share options for the subscription of
21,720,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.6% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 21,720,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$2,172,000 (equivalent to RMB1,820,000) and
share premium of HK$34,969,000 (equivalent to
RMB29,226,000), before related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 21,720,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.6% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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2.l AEsTE (47

BRERTE (&)

Emfﬂ%amcaz 66617 ARG B 31 7132,666
A% AR B 3 A% AR 10 K2 58 SR 2K13,0007%
JT (mﬁaﬁﬁé/&%ﬁ&o,oooﬁ AR IR B
106,000/ 7T (#8E 1 A K #84,0007T) ©

REEHR AR AR RITEBRE 7R
BEREIAE ST 218 T 21,720,000/% 8% 17 - 4B E
RATINE BB BITIRAREN.6% < RIBEAR
AR AERANER  2EITERITERER
RS EBEE1T21,720,0000% A A ) EES ML A%
B - LA R BBAMNIR AN2,172,0008 7T (FBERA
R #:1,820,0007T ) K %17 4 834,969,000/ 7T
(FBENARKE292260007T) (FBAEREEETT
FISZAT)

2EMEmAIER R RIBEERET
m AIEAE21,720,00010 K7 T BEALAHE -
EE.?EAZIKA BN E HEZITIRAA)1.6% °
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33.Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Mr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation on
8 June 2010.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB101,538,000
and RMB85,012,000 as at 31 December 2015 and
2014, respectively.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

33. f#&1E

AEERFERBEFENRESERLE

BOtHEE

AEERNAHREBIEARREERIEREIR
EFEAERN _T-FFAN\BEARMAH
HERFANMBRRDEE

EELAEE

BIEBEFRBARNE  NEBK T BENEARE
EEBENRBERETII0%BEAEIEAES &
BHEBEHRIER M E AR50% 5 LE - FEF
Bl AELERTARE TRERBET 0 EE
AIEE A FLABBRLIEMBREAR, B E#IT
IR R B AL 18 K FIER S 8RB ME R EE
& ARH25% - FENB AR AEEN=F
—hERZE-NEFFTZA=T—H555
AR ¥101,538,0007T & A R #85,012,0007T ©
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31 December 2015
—T—hF+=-ZAR=+—H

33.Reserves (continued) 33. f#tts (&)
Exchange fluctuation reserve PE 5K B
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign ME H R B R B IR AT RIRE R B ASNA A
exchange differences arising from the translation of Mg mERmEERER Z58 - ZREH RN
the financial statements of companies outside the MiEo 4 SR BUREREE o

PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.

Share option reserve BRERE
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and BARR R BEIRERT 8| R 8B 1T
the share options issued under the schemes are ARIEEFIS - BB IR MIFE32 ©

included in note 32 to the financial statements.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation AHtHEREEMH#E

reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve AEHEREEHRFRERREERATHEE
comprises of the fair value differences arising from the KERN A ABEEFEARK -

revaluation for the available-for-sale investment.
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-RA=+—H

34.Pledge of Assets 34. EEBH
Prepaid Property,
land lease plant and Pledged Trade
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
At NE BER
HENE ®E BEAEN EZRURA st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARBTr  ARETT ARBTx
(note 16) (note 13) (note 26) (note 23)

(H&E16) (HEE13) (Hf5£26) (H23)

31 December 2015 “E-1E
+ZA=1+-H
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 29) (F3E29) 33,263 923,251 174,096 78,271 1,208,881
Bills payable (note 27) EREE (F2r) - - 322,125 - 322,125
lssue of letters of credit & {H{EME - - 84,180 - 84,180
33,263 923,251 580,401 78,271 1,615,186
31 December 2014 —E—E
t-A=t-H
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 29) (P3E29) 33,825 770,821 387,767 34,126 1,226,539
Bills payable (note 27) EREE (K27 - - 232,332 - 232,332
Issue of letters of credit M ERE - - 2415 - 2415
33,825 770,821 622,514 34,126 1,461,286
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

35.0perating Lease Arrangements  35. & &HE L HE
(a) As lessor (@ EAHBA
The Group leases its staff quarters and office AEBBBLEEHELHLHEETIRES
premises under operating lease arrangements, MIRFAEYE  CERNEBNT1ER
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 105F - A —MIMEKRBP ZTRFS
one to ten years. The terms of the leases NETRAARBEERTAEHAEHESED
generally also require the tenants to pay security T o

deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total RZZE—RF+A=+—0 X&H

future minimum lease receivables under non- BREEEPE A TG EHE

cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling T3 HAR 2 B A R 2R S K AE B PR IR
due as follows: TH@ZRIAT -

2015 2014

—E-REF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Within one year —F R 2,720 293
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ _-EZFHF BHEEEME 10,641 147
After five years AHF% 13,020 20

26,381 460
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

35.0perating Lease Arrangements  35. & &HEZH (&
(continueqd)

(b) As lessee (b) EEREBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEERBEEHETHREBEANT
from its related companies (note 37(c)) and (MI3E37(0)) MB M E = HBAETHA
independent third parties under operating =Y - MEREMKEFAPN 12
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are 20%F ©
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty
years.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total R-ZE—HF+-_A=+—H A£H
future minimum lease payments under non- RIE T HEE 2 E R T 5 85 2 HA
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: AR R EEAENRBREAT
2015 2014
—ZE-HF —T—-MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Within one year —FR 3,790 3,653
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ _-_EZFHF BHEEEME 10,702 8,853
After five years hF%® 12,168 14,196

26,660 26,702
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36.Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 35(b) above, the Group had the following capital

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#F&RMsE

36. L

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B S RES5(0)RF Al rAE 2 TH EAGES N - 1
EHRERE NEEFIATEAREGE:

2015 2014
—E-RF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMEE ST E

Land and buildings THREF 10,816 15,270
Plant and machinery 5 Bt 25 15,955 9,735

Capital contribution payable to ERHEERENTE
an available-for-sale investment 10,751 14,000
37,522 39,005

37.Related Party Transactions 7. FEANLRZ

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (@) BRRZEVHREEMMST FRHZ S
in these financial statements, the Group had the I REEEBFEAREFRNBATH

following material transactions with related parties R

during the year:

2015 2014
—B-RfF —E—-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 ARE T AREEFIT
Purchases of raw materials [FE D 7B E R #
from related companies (ii)
Related companies wholly ETnAEREHREN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EZRE/NG] 11,837 29,222
Purchases of facilities from [RBEEQTABERE
related companies (ii)
Related companies wholly ETRAEREHEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EpENE]| 59,956 20,813
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

JV.RAEANERE (&

37.Related Party Transactions

(continued)
(a) (continuea) (@ &)
2015 2014
—E2-RF —E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt aE AR®TR ARETT
Sales of products to MEEARHEEER
related companies (i)
The joint venture BEDE 10,817 -
The associate /NS - 16,900
Related companies wholly EFEAEREHBEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li E2pENE] 49,421 40,812
60,238 57,712
Lease of office premises EmMEREATR
from two related —REEHE
companies and a director WMAEYE (ii)
Related companies wholly ETRE2EHEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li [ pENE] 2,936 2,893
Mr. Dong Li B4 0] - 49
2,936 2,942
Sales of facilities to MEE LN RHERE
related companies (ii)
The joint venture BEDRE - 17,584
The associate RN - 2,577
- 20,161
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31 December 2015

—hF+=A

=+-8

37.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(a) (continueq)

Notes:

M

(i)

Mr. Dong Li is an executive director, the chairman
and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

The purchases of raw materials, purchases of
facilities, sales of products, lease of office premises
and sales of facilities with the related companies
were made according to prices mutually agreed
between the two parties after arm’s length
negotiation on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties.

The related party transactions in respect of the
purchases of raw materials, purchases of facilities,
sales of products,
sales of facilities above also constitute connected

lease of office premises and

transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

37.Related Party Transactions JT.BEALRE (&
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related (b) EREBERARINAREELE:
companies:

Due from related companies Due to related companies

FE R B A RIFKIE EABEARARE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mNF ZTB-—HE —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR¥®TT AR¥TR AREBTRT

Current: ENER:
The joint venture BEME 2,440 11,266 - -
The associate = l/NE] - 1,085 - -
Related companies EFREREBAN

wholly owned Fap NG

by Mr. Dong Li 17,698 28,356 931 6,948

20,138 40,707 931 6,948

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all balances RZE-—RAFR-_FT—NF+A
were trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and =t+—H FEERERESHE &
have no fixed terms of repayment. AR - 8 K &) FE 8 R o
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

37.Related Party Transactions 7.BEBEATRE (&

(continued)

(c) Commitments with related (c) EERFE N AIMVAF
companies
In September 2010, the Group entered into an RZZ—ZFNA  AEBEERIITIHE
agreement with a lease term ended on 31 August MR ARAR (HEXLEESD
2012 with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply BHRENAR)HEEMRPRAEWE
Co., Ltd., a company which is wholly owned by RV ——FN\A=1+—HA
Mr. Dong Li, in relation to the lease of two office IEH W - AR B SZpEESRE—
premises. The Group extended the lease term of T-N\F+ZAZ+=A-RZE—RX
this agreement to 23 December 2018. The lease FE_Z—N\F BN TRYMIHFA
expenses to be paid to Shenzhen Marshell Power MR M AR ARNEER B AT
Supply Co., Ltd. will be RMB690,000 per year 4 A R #£690,0007T °

from 2016 to 2018.

In August 2008, the Group entered into an RZZEZNFNAA K& B HEastern
agreement with a lease term ended on 31 International LLC (FREZEZFLEAMEEER
December 2012 with Eastern International LLC, a BHENRAR) RHEERAEYHL L
company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li's MPE—FT——F+=-_RA=+—H%A
spouse, in relation to the lease of office premises. LEEY R - $$@EH%§ZT5%§%THHH§EHH
The Group extended the lease term of this E-E-RFRA=Z+—H-KRZ
agreement to 31 May 2026. The lease expenses —NFEZZERF- ﬂﬂ§Z1TJL€"7Eastern
to be paid to Eastern International LLC will be International LLCHIM EFZ i BT F A
RMB2,246,000 per year from 2016 to 2025 and FR#52,246,0007T ' MR ZZEZRFHR
RMB936,000 for 2026. A #936,0007T ©
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

37.Related Party Transactions JT.BEALRE (&
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management d XEEXEEBEAENMS:
personnel of the Group:
2015 2014
—®2-HF _—FT0OF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Basic salaries and other benefits EAXFHE REMET 4,175 4,600
Performance-related bonuses BRI TEAL 1,351 1,571
Equity-settled share option expenses AR %5 45 & B8 AL #E 5 2 169 406
Pension scheme contributions RRAE FFTE 3K 88 43

5,783 6,620
Further details of directors’ emoluments are BEWEAE— TFEEH R EREHT
included in note 8 to the financial statements. 8 e
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31 December 2015
—E-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

38.Financial Instruments by 38. IRERIDTNERMTE

Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of BRI ARRERRNERENT

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables asset Total
AREBEEEY
SFABEN EBRR AHEHE
CREE W RIE CHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETTT ARBEFT
2015 —E-AfE
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - - 54,257 54,257
Trade and bills receivables B 2R IER
i E2 - 1,548,871 - 1,548,871
Deposits and other receivables &4 I b U T B - 39,687 - 39,687
Derivative financial instruments 1448 T & 4,290 - - 4,290
Equity investments at fair value A EBEZ S A
through profit or loss BafEstRE 22,543 - - 22,543
Pledged deposits [REERLERER - 580,401 - 580,401
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY - 207,618 - 207,618
26,833 2,376,577 54,257 2,457,667
2014 —T-mE
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE - - 23,346 23,346
Trade and bills receivables B HEWGIE R
ERERE - 1,358,262 - 1,358,262
Deposits and other receivables &% & H b & UL FA - 19,689 - 19,689
Derivative financial instruments ~ $7T4 &/ I A 6,575 - - 6,575
Pledged deposits [REREYEEN - 622,514 - 622,514
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY - 138,907 - 138,907
6,575 2,139,372 23,346 2,169,293
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31 December 2015

—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

38.ILZBMAIDATNER T A

Category (continued) (#&
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial
liabilities at Financial
fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
DREESZS REBERE A
HPN-E:) FFEMN
cRAE = 3=Ri ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREBTT ARBTT
2015 —E-1fF
Trade and bills payables B 5 WG IE RN RE - 1,220,091 1,220,091
Other payables H B F00E - 44,329 44,329
Derivative financial instruments #7144 @ T A 56,397 - 56,397
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t BIR{TEE - 1,555,891 1,555,891
56,397 2,820,311 2,876,708
2014 —T-mE
Trade and bills payables B S EWFIE R EREE - 1,216,390 1,216,390
Other payables Hoth & 1< 5RIE - 69,282 69,282
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &g T A 43,571 - 43,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B R1TEE - 1,201,670 1,201,670
43,571 2,487,342 2,530,913
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31 December 2015
—hE+-A=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the pledged deposits, trade
and bills receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.
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39.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2015 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The Group enters into derivative
financial instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with good credit ratings.
Derivative financial instruments, including forward
currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, and foreign exchange spot
and forward rates. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

31 December 2015
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value
Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair value of the available-for-sale equity investment
in the unlisted company is measured using asset
based approach. The assets of the unlisted company
include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
principal-protected investment and investments in
portfolio companies. Management has assessed
that the fair values of cash, cash equivalents, the
short-term principal-protected investment and the
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
with consideration of the nature and the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the
investments in portfolio companies is estimated using
different valuation methodologies according to the
nature of individual investments, such as the trading
price of listed shares, price of recent investment,
market multiples and the discounted cash flow method.
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value V.EMITAELNABERAIRE
. . . I =+
Hierarchy of Financial BEER (&)
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy NREBEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TREJAEEeHRIANAAEBHEAZRE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial &
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value EAAIEE EREE
Fair value measurement using
DAEESEFRAEBR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEATEE BEATTEE
SEER TS RE WABE wWABE
(%B1E) (%28) ($83E) @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFTT
2015 —B-nf
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - - 54,257 54,257
Derivative financial instruments ~ $14 48 T & - 4,290 - 4,290
Equity investments at fair value ~ R BEZE T A
through profit or loss B ERERE 22,543 - - 22,543
22,543 4,290 54,257 81,090
2014 —T-mE
Available-for-sale investment ~ AJ £ &R E - - 23,346 23,346
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 & m T A - 6,575 - 6,575
- 6,575 23,346 29,921
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31 December 2015
—FT-hF+=ZAR=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value N.EHMITERNAEBERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial BEER (&)
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER (&)
Assets measured at fair value (continueqd) A EEFEREE (&)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FANEFANBEAELHNAT:

3 during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-IHF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF R ARETT

Available-for-sale investment — unlisted: AEHERE—FF LT
At 1 January R—H—H 23,346 10,500
Total gains recognised in ERE A2 AR

other comprehensive income Wk 4858 27,662 2,346
Additions IR 3,249 10,500
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 54,257 23,346
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value N.EMIAENAEBERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial EEHR (&)
Instruments (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value RAAEBETENAE

Fair value measurement using

MABENERAER

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTBE EXFUBE

BT SEE BARE BARE
($E18) (%$2[8) (%E3E) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®ETT ARET:R

2015 —E-AF
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &g T & - 56,397 - 56,397
2014 —E-mF
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4 g T & - 38,206 5,365 43,571
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

39.Fair Value and Fair Value V.EMIEAREBERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial EEHK (&)

Instruments (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level FAEIJERAAEBETEEHNT
3 during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Derivative financial instruments — warrants: 74 % & T B — R AERE
At 1 January n—H—H 5,365 -
Fair value at inception BARNAAEE - 277
Total losses recognised in the statement of 5+ A E A FI X RIBZFX
profit or loss included in other expenses ~ HERH) &5 18 4258 - 12,347
Exercise of warrants TR IR - (7,259)
Expiration of warrants R HE T R (5,365) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 5,365

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2014: Nil).
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40.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and cash and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from
the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

40.Financial Risk Management 40. TRLEREIE B N REBUR
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Interest rate risk I =R =2 b
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market REER TS EEESME LY AR 20
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term REBLUFBNEGF BN RBGEHEEMA-

debt obligation with floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRINTEFMEZEE/FBIEZBFRT A=
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible A B EE A S ERANR N KA EE R
change in interest rate, with all other variables held RS BRI BURSE -

constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease) in
basis points before tax equity”
HEEEm,/ BATRR R,
(R2)  #&m/ Cdd) CRA) *
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTT ARETTT

2015 —E-FE

RVB AR 50 (257) =
RMB AR (50) 257 -
SG$ T 50 (84) -
SG$ ;T (50) 84 -
HKS BT 50 (84) -
HK$ BT (50) 84 -
2014 —E-nmF

RMB AR 50 (80) -
RMB AR (50) 80 -
SG$ N TT 50 (93) -
SG$ N T (50) 93 -
HK$ BT 50 (138) -
HK$ BT (50) 138 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEEREHF
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40.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore and Mainland China. For
companies in Mainland China, their principal activities
are transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
Mainland China, their principal activities are transacted
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 50% (2014: 54%) of the Group’s
sales were denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the operating units making the
sales, whilst approximately 77% (2014: 80%) of costs
were denominated in the units’ functional currencies.

31 December 2015
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40. B EREE B KRB
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31 December 2015
—E-RFEt+ZA=1+—H

40.Financial Risk Management 40. TRLEREIE B N REBUR
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SRR ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRINREFMBESHF[IEBRT EX
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible SRS EBHASERAEN (AREE
change in the exchange rate, with all other variables EERBENAABEEZS) MASEREN
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due WEIRBRE -

to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit before (decrease)
exchange rate tax in equity”
BRER BADREF R M,

(T¥) &/ Cdd) R ) *
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARBTR ARBTR

2015 —E-1%
If RMB weakens WMARMEHETRE

against US$ 50 (23,468) -
If RMB strengthens WARBRETHE

against US$ (50) 23,468 -
If RMB weakens HARELAETRE

against HK$ 50 (2,287) -
If RMB strengthens WARELBITHE

against HK$ (50) 2,287 -
If RMB weakens MARELBTRE

against EUR 50 (1,295) -
If RMB strengthens WARB LB THE

against EUR (50) 1,295 -
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

40.Financial Risk Management

40. =B EREE B B REUR

Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SR ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit before (decrease)
exchange rate tax in equity”
[EX LR/ 754 A A R,/
(T%) #m/ CRd) ORD)~
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBFT ARBTFT
2014 —E—UF
If RMB weakens against WAREHETRE
us$ 50 (12,546) -
If RMB strengthens WAREHETLHE
against US$ (50) 12,546 -
If RMB weakens MARELAETRE
against HK$ 50 (1,174) -
If RMB strengthens WARBLBTHE
against HK$ (50) 1,174 -
If RMB weakens MARYEEBTRE
against EUR 50 (1,988) -
If RMB strengthens WARB LB THE
against EUR (50) 1,988 -
Excluding retained profits T EIERE BT
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31 December 2015
—AFE+-_A=+—H

40.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy customers. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis,
and therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and pledged
deposits, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Significant concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 22% (2014: 24%) and 41% (2014:
45%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively. Sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 26% (2014: 25%) of the
Group’s total sales for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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40.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

40.

31 December 2015
—E-hFt+-_RA=+—H

SREREREWREE

(45

MRENE & E b

AEBRBAPERDE R TAEEE
TRRNER K TAZEESHTARS
REE (B SRR BRI B A RKE
EBOMEIRERE

AEENBENRARTEE #RHAEEE
SHIEEMEMEE R T - thoh NEE TR
BAERITRENENHEE -

AEEN SRR BB ESORIES ORI
MR -

Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
RERE DME 1855 oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBT T ARYBT T AR%T R
2015 —E-HF
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowings 544,240 936,133 113,569 1,593,942
Trade and bills payables B RENRIBER
JEN RIE - 1,220,091 - 1,220,091
Other payables and H b e RIE K
accruals EEtER - 44,329 - 44,329
Derivative financial TEERITA
instruments - 56,397 - 56,397
544,240 2,256,950 113,569 2,914,759
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

40.Financial Risk Management 40. TRLEREIE B N REBUR
Objectives and Policies (#&
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRE (&)

Less than 1t05
On demand 1 year years Total
P E KA LIE 125%F @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
2014 —T—MF
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowings - 1,157,559 86,632 1,244,191
Trade and bills payables B RNHER
N R - 1,216,390 - 1,216,390
Other payables and H A& 5RIB &
accruals EEtER - 69,282 - 69,282
Derivative financial TEERTA
instruments - 43,571 - 43,571
- 2,486,802 86,632 2,573,434
Capital management EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEEEAEENETEEZABRAER4E
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong RS E BT RA RGN E AR XS
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to FHER URBEREOEBERAZRS
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes REERBEERAEDEREERNEER

248

adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014,
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

40.Financial Risk Management 40. TRLERREIE B N R BUR
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Capital management (continued) EXEE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REFNEEBBL RERER  ZH KA
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total RBRITEERIBEE - MEHRNEE
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting BELRERAT:

periods were as follows:

2015 2014
—®2-1F —F0OF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITIEE 1,555,891 1,201,670
Total assets REE 5,733,508 5,260,686
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE 27% 23%
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

41 .Transfers of Financial Assets MEZETHEE

250

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement’) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB78,271,000
(2014: RMB34,126,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2015 was RMB78,271,000 (2014:
RMB34,126,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2015 was RMB38,477,000
(2014: RMB11,208,000) which was recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 29).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&# &R MisE

Transfers of Financial Assets
(continued)

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the Group factored trade receivables to a bank on
a non-recourse basis for cash. In the opinion of the
directors, as the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards associated with the factored trade
receivables, the financial asset derecognition conditions
as stipulated in IAS 39 have been fulfilled. Accordingly,
the Group derecognised the full carrying amount of
the trade receivables factored. The carrying amount
of trade receivables derecognised as at 31 December
2015 was HK$31,596,000 (2014: HK$43,702,000).

Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been restated
to conform with the current year’s presentation and
disclosures.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) during the
current year, the presentation and disclosure of
certain items and balances in the financial statements,
including the comparative amounts, have been revised
to comply with the new requirements.

41.

42.

31 December 2015
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EETHEE (&
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REZ2E-_ZT—HFR-_FT—NF+_A
=T—RIFE  AEBRERREER—H
RITRIEE HERUFIBNERES - EER
B ARASEDBRIEE ZEWRFIENE
RNEBS Bk % O] 3R 8 2% - BUPR & 51 2RI %839
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=-—RA=+—H

43.Statement of Financial Position

43. 21X B 2 BB AR 3R

of The Company

Information about the statement of financial position of

BRARRREBERR M BRAKRZER

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as m
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
(Restated)
(geE7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBE AR ZRE 2,024,148 1,636,458
Pledged deposits EHERER 165,500 234,500
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFED 1,599 1,638
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRIE -FI2 Rk
other receivables H i W SR IE 3,990 1,999
Equity investments at fair value AAEEEHT ABEN
through profit or loss TR E 13,022 -
Total current assets mENEERE 184,111 238,137
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNFIBEREGEA 532 176
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRRITIEE 544,240 222,498
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIT A - 5,365
Total current liabilities MEBARERTE 544,772 228,039
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS wE (BB EERE (360,661) 10,098
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHABERRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,663,487 1,646,556
Net assets BEFE 1,663,487 1,646,556
EQUITY ER
Share capital A& s 115,843 115,742
Reserves (note) R (PfaE) 1,547,644 1,530,814
Total equity W4 EE 1,663,487 1,646,556
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31 December 2015
—E2—hAF+=-A=+—H

43. R B 2 BRI AR (B

43.Statement of Financial Position
of The Company (continued)

Note: B 5
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRR ZEEREZNT
Share Share
premium  Shareholders’ option Accumulated
account contribution reserve losses Total
RO RER BRRHE BRERE ZitER ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At1 January 2014 W-F-mE-A-H 1,239,506 337,830 31,323 (91,415) 1,517,334
Loss and total comprehensive EAEER 2 EEBEE
loss for the year - - - (8,900) (8,900)
Exercise of share options IR mRE 2,504 - (1,410) - 1,004
Exercise of warrants TR 18,260 - - - 18,260
Equity-settled share option LA E MBI EZ B
arrangements - - 3,026 - 3,026
At 31 December 2014and R -T—MNF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+—8k
—“Z-1%—-A—H 1,260,360 337,830 32,939 (100,315) 1,530,814
Profit and total comprehensive & /3 & 2 % Al 8
income for the year - - - 39,624 39,624
Exercise of share options id{y 937 - (587) = 350
Final 2014 dividend paid BN ZZ-—NERERE (23,999) - - - (23,999)
Equity-settled share option ~ WUEZ & H MBI E R B
arrangements - - 855 - 855
At 31 December 2015 RZT—HEF
+-A=1+—8© 1,237,298 337,830 33,207 (60,691) 1,547,644
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31 December 2015
—T-hF+=ZAR=+—H

43.Statement of Financial Position
of The Company (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

44 . Approval of the Financial
Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016.
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFYBRRE

BB E TR ERM B HRRNARENBER
EMBFEENEENEE BEMFHEREDM
ZESIT

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—B-TE —E-ME “E-=F “E--F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT ARETT ARBTR ARETFT
RESULTS $&

REVENUE Wz 4,330,893 4,248,351 3,646,874 3,247,986 3,164,056
Cost of sales HEMK (3,561,184) (3,531,691) (3,063,671) (2,655,784 (2,510,311)
Gross profit 5 769,709 716,660 583,203 592,202 653,745
Other income and gains H A RS 70,567 75,644 102,139 43,453 70,878
Selling and distribution expenses ~ HER D HERET (216,466) (202,255) (168,595) (159,871) (114,048)
Administrative expenses TBRS (216,802) (220,072) (240,521) (229,761) (179,758)
Research and development costs BB A A (84,859) (154,430) (125,006) (93,817) (66,730)

Reversal/(recognition) of HREEELER

impairment losses due to RiERAT

suspension of Zhaoging Leoch (2Bt EE

Battery Technology Co., Ltd. f&E,/ (FR) &

(“Zhaoging Leoch’) REES - 58,809 (168,049) - -
Other expenses HibEX (75,568) (50,093) (5,646) (12,545) (6,815)
Finance costs B A (104,673) (108,505) (98,813) (62,850) (29,128)
Share of profit and loss of ajoint ~~ [EfE—FAE ¥R

venture and an associate BN RRRF R

B (7,352) (3,894) 394 (296) 122
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX Baras/ (H8) 134,556 111,864 (120,894) 76,515 328,266
Income tax expense MERAY (28,251) (30,073) (8,395) (4,859) (44,646)
PROFITALOSS) FORTHE YEAR  AEERF/ (H8) 106,305 81,791 (129,289) 71,662 283,620
Profit/{loss) for the year UTATEEREE

attributable to: wH,/ (EB):

Owners of the parent BREHEBA 106,579 81,791 (129,289) 71,662 283,620
Non-controlling interests FERER (274) - - - -
106,305 81,791 (129,289) 71,662 283,620
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Five Year Financial Summary AEMERHE

Assets, Liabilities and
Non-Controlling Interests

BE BENFEREDR

As at 31 December

Y

R+=A=t-8

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

“g-15§ -FT-mf -F-=f -F--f F-%

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEE4E 5,733,508 5,260,686 5,006,006 5,097,701 4,951,551

TOTAL LIABILITIES afEaE (3,287,926) (2,930,010) (2,795,705) (2,753,420) (1,921,337)
NON-CONTROLLING R

INTERESTS (5,994) - - - -

2,439,588 2,330,676 2,210,301 2,344,281 2.330,214
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